
 

 

Arun District Council 
Civic Centre 
Maltravers Road 
Littlehampton 
West Sussex 
BN17 5LF 
 
Tel: (01903 737500) 
Fax: (01903) 730442 
DX: 57406 Littlehampton 
Minicom: 01903 732765 
 
e-mail: committees@arun.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Committee Manager Andrew Bishop (Ext. 37984) 

23 November 2021 
 
HOUSING AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Housing and Wellbeing Committee will be held in the Council Chamber, 
Arun Civic Centre, Maltravers Road, Littlehampton, BN17 5LF on Thursday 2 
December 2021 at 6.00 pm and you are requested to attend. 
 
 
Members:  Councillors Pendleton (Chair), Gregory (Vice-Chair), Catterson, 

Mrs Cooper, Daniells, Mrs English, Hamilton, Hughes, Needs, Rhodes 
and Yeates 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  Subject to Covid-19 Risk Assessments members of the public are 
advised of the following: 
 
Where public meetings are being held at the Arun Civic Centre in order to best manage the 
safe space available, members of the public are in the first instance asked to watch the 
meeting online via the Council’s Committee pages – the meeting will be available to watch 
live via the internet at this link 
 

a) Where a member of the public has registered to take part in Public Question Time, 
they will be invited to submit the question in advance of the meeting to be read out 
by an Officer. In response to the continuing health guidelines, there will be very 
limited public access to this meeting. Admission for public speakers will be by ticket 
only, bookable when submitting questions. Attendees will be asked to sit in an 
allocated seat in the public gallery on a first come first served basis.  Only one ticket 
will be available per person. 
 

b) It is recommended that all those attending take a lateral flow test prior to the 
meeting. 
 

c) All those attending the meeting will be required to wear face coverings and maintain 
safe distancing when in the building/meeting room.  
 

d) Members of the public must not attend any face-to-face meeting if they or a member 
of their household have Covid-19 symptoms.  
 

Public Document Pack

https://democracy.arun.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=350&MId=1497&Ver=4


 
 

Any members of the public wishing to address the Committee meeting during Public 
Question Time, will need to email Committees@arun.gov.uk by 5.15 pm on Wednesday 24 
November in line with current Procedure Rules. It will be at the Chief Executive’s/Chair’s 
discretion if any questions received after this deadline are considered. Permitted questions 
will be read out by an Officer.  
 
For further information on the items to be discussed, please contact: 
committees@arun.gov.uk 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 Members and Officers are invited to make any declaration of 
pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial interests that they may 
have in relation to items on this agenda, and are reminded 
that they should re-declare their interest before consideration 
of the items or as soon as the interest becomes apparent. 
 
Members and Officers should make their declaration by 
stating: 

 
a) the item they have the interest in 
b) whether it is a pecuniary/personal interest and/or 

prejudicial interest 
c) the nature of the interest 
 

 

3. MINUTES   

 The Committee will be asked to approve as a correct record 
the minutes of the Residential and Wellbeing Services 
Committee held on 30 September 2021. 
 

 

4. ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA THAT THE CHAIRMAN OF 
THE MEETING IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY BY REASON 
OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  
 

 

5. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

 To receive questions from the public (for a period of up to 15 
minutes). 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:Committees@arun.gov.uk
mailto:committees@arun.gov.uk


 
 

6. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUSINESS PLAN 2021/22 
- ANNUAL UPDATE  

(Pages 1 - 8) 

 This report provides the annual update on the baseline 
position for the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 
(HRABP) projections.  The HRABP forecasts income, 
expenditure, investment and borrowing in respect of council 
housing stock over a 30-year period. Regular review of the 
HRABP is essential to ensure short, medium, and long-term 
viability of the plan.  The update has been produced by the 
Council’s retained expert consultant; Housing Finance 
Associates, and is based on the Council’s best available 
information and realistic assumptions for the coming years. 
 

 

7. HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY 2022  (Pages 9 - 58) 

 Every local housing authority must publish a Housing 

Allocations Policy to explain how it prioritises applicants and 

its procedures for allocating housing. All allocations must be 

made in strict accordance with the published scheme. 

(Housing Act 1996, section 166A(1) and (14)). The current 

Housing Allocations Policy has not been fully reviewed since 

2012.  This report seeks approval for the adoption and 

implementation of the Council’s revised Housing Allocations 

Policy (HAP) 2022. 

 

 

8. ARUN LOCAL COMMUNITY NETWORK UPDATE  (Pages 59 - 68) 

 Health provision is currently undergoing a transformation.  
Nationally General Practices have established clusters of 
Primary Care Networks (PCN’s).  In West Sussex the PCN’s 
are being encouraged to link into Local Community Networks 
(LCN’s) based on the geographies of District and Borough 
Councils as this will make partnership working and the 
achievement of common goals more practical and 
sustainable.  Each LCN is established with a range of 
community partners to work in partnership to address local 
health inequalities and wellbeing related issues.  This report 
provides an update to Members of the Arun Local Community 
Network. 
 

 

OUTSIDE BODIES - FEEDBACK FROM MEETINGS 
 
Will be circulated separately to the agenda should there be any. 
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 69 - 70) 

 The Committee is required to note the Work Programme for 
2021/22. 
 
 

 



 
 

10. EXEMPT INFORMATION   

 The Committee is asked to consider passing the following 
resolution: - 
 
That under Section 100a (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public and accredited representatives of 
newspapers be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act by virtue of the paragraph specified 
against the item. 
 

 

11. COUNCIL TAX INSOLVENCY WRITE OFFS OVER £5,001  (Pages 71 - 74) 

 This report seeks Members’ approval to write off outstanding 
Council Tax charges which are subject to insolvency action. 
 

 

12. BUSINESS RATES INSOLVENCY WRITE OFFS OVER 
£10,001  

(Pages 75 - 78) 

 This report seeks Members’ approval to write off outstanding 
Business Rates and Business Improvement District (BID) 
charges where the liable party is subject to insolvency action. 
 

 

13. BUSINESS RATES INSOLVENCY WRITE OFF  (Pages 79 - 82) 

 This report seeks Members’ approval to write off outstanding 
Business Rate charges. 
 

 

14. AWARD OF BUSINESS RATES DISCRETIONARY RATE 
RELIEF - 2020/2021 & 2021/2022  

(Pages 83 - 86) 

 This report seeks Member approval to award Discretionary 
Rate Relief for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and 
backdate an award for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 
2021. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Note: If Members have any detailed questions, they are reminded that they need to 

inform the Chair and relevant Director in advance of the meeting. 
 
Note: Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings – The District Council 

supports the principles of openness and transparency in its decision making and 
permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its meetings that are 
open to the public. This meeting may therefore be recorded, filmed or broadcast 
by video or audio, by third parties. Arrangements for these activities should 
operate in accordance with guidelines agreed by the Council and as available via 
the following link - PART 8 - CP - Section 5 Filming Photographic Protocol 

https://democracy.arun.gov.uk/documents/s8256/PART%208%20-%20CP%20-%20Section%205%20Filming%20Photographic%20Protocol.pdf


 

1 
 

         
 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF HOUSING AND WELLBEING 

COMMITTEE ON 2 DECEMBER 2021 
 

SUBJECT:   Annual Update Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2021/22 

    

 

REPORT AUTHOR:     Satnam Kaur, Group Head of Residential Services 

DATE:      17 November 2021 

EXTN:      37718 

AREA:     Residential Services 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

This report provides the annual update on the baseline position for the Housing Revenue 

Account Business Plan (HRABP) projections.  The HRABP forecasts income, expenditure, 

investment and borrowing in respect of council housing stock over a 30-year period.  

Regular review of the HRABP is essential to ensure short, medium, and long-term viability 

of the plan.  The update has been produced by the Council’s retained expert consultant; 

Housing Finance Associates and is based on the Council’s best available information and 

realistic assumptions for the coming years.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

Housing & Wellbeing Committee RECOMMEND to Full Council: 

 That the annual update of the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2021/22 

be noted. 

 

1.0     BACKGROUND: 

1.1  The Housing Revenue Account is a self-contained financial business which relies 

on the rental income from Council-owned homes to provide the ongoing 

maintenance and management resources needed to sustain the housing stock. In 

order to maximise investment in homes and sustain service to tenants, it is vital that 

operations are as efficient and effective as possible. 

1.2   The HRABP 2017-2047 was approved by Full Council in September 2017.  The 

 primary objectives of the plan are to: 

 Increase the housing stock 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

2 
 

 Ensure housing assets are fit for purpose 

 Maximise income and make the best use of available resources  

 1.3 For the purposes of showing the affordability and sustainability of spending 

decisions, the forecast assumes that debt is redeemed as quickly as possible.  

However, in reality the actual approach taken will be determined by the conditions 

that apply when loans are taken out by taking a risk-based approach. 

1.4 Members should note that this iteration of the plan provides high level forecasts for 

 costs associated with the delivery of carbon neutral homes by 2050.  These are 

 likely to be subject to change once more detailed analysis has been undertaken.   

 These will be included in future updates. 

1.5  Baseline Revenue Forecast 

1.5.1 The chart below shows the Council’s ability to maintain a minimum level of 

balances (£2 million) during the 30-year period covered by the forecast. 

(£10,000)

(£8,000)

(£6,000)

(£4,000)

(£2,000)

£0

£2,000

£4,000

£6,000

£8,000

£10,000

£12,000

2
0

2
1

.2
2

2
0

2
2

.2
3

2
0

2
3

.2
4

2
0

2
4

.2
5

2
0

2
5

.2
6

2
0

2
6

.2
7

2
0

2
7

.2
8

2
0

2
8

.2
9

2
0

2
9

.3
0

2
0

3
0

.3
1

2
0

3
1

.3
2

2
0

3
2

.3
3

2
0

3
3

.3
4

2
0

3
4

.3
5

2
0

3
5

.3
6

2
0

3
6

.3
7

2
0

3
7

.3
8

2
0

3
8

.3
9

2
0

3
9

.4
0

2
0

4
0

.4
1

2
0

4
1

.4
2

2
0

4
2

.4
3

2
0

4
3

.4
4

2
0

4
4

.4
5

2
0

4
5

.4
6

2
0

4
6

.4
7

2
0

4
7

.4
8

2
0

4
8

.4
9

2
0

4
9

.5
0

2
0

5
0

.5
1

£000 HRA Balances

In-year cashflow HRA Balance

 

1.5.2 In this chart the blue line represents the in-year movement in HRA balances, taking 

into account income, expenditure and debt repayment. When the blue line is above 

zero, income generated is greater than expenditure resulting in an increase in 

balances.  The orange line forecasts the accumulated balance at the end of each 

year. 

1.5.3 The HRA minimum balance of £2m can be broadly maintained throughout the 

forecast. During the first six years the projections mirror medium term budgets.  

Thereafter the HRA utilises balances above the minimum level to help repay debt 

and finance the HRA capital programme, which reduces balances to the minimum 

level from year 7. This is the reason why the blue and orange lines drop in 2027/28.  

Any capacity for generating additional balances during the forecast is used to 

finance the capital programme or to repay debt, which means that balances 

continue to be maintained at the minimum level for the rest of the planning period. 

Page 2



 

3 
 

 

1.6 Base line capital programme 

1.6.1 The next chart for the baseline shows the ability to deliver the HRA capital 

 programme within the available resources. This chart shows the capital expenditure 

 required each year, identifying the main types of expenditure separately.  

£0

£2,000

£4,000

£6,000

£8,000

£10,000

£12,000

£14,000

£16,000

2
0

2
1

.2
2

2
0

2
2

.2
3

2
0

2
3

.2
4

2
0

2
4

.2
5

2
0

2
5

.2
6

2
0

2
6

.2
7

2
0

2
7

.2
8

2
0

2
8

.2
9

2
0

2
9

.3
0

2
0

3
0

.3
1

2
0

3
1

.3
2

2
0

3
2

.3
3

2
0

3
3

.3
4

2
0

3
4

.3
5

2
0

3
5

.3
6

2
0

3
6

.3
7

2
0

3
7

.3
8

2
0

3
8

.3
9

2
0

3
9

.4
0

2
0

4
0

.4
1

2
0

4
1

.4
2

2
0

4
2

.4
3

2
0

4
3

.4
4

2
0

4
4

.4
5

2
0

4
5

.4
6

2
0

4
6

.4
7

2
0

4
7

.4
8

2
0

4
8

.4
9

2
0

4
9

.5
0

2
0

5
0

.5
1

£000 HRA Capital Programme

Capital Maintenance Disabled Adaptations Other Capital Expenditure New Build & 141 Replacements

 

1.6.2 The baseline position allows for the addition of 207 properties between 2021/22 

and 2032/33. Expenditure on these units appears as the brown area of the graph. 

The chart also includes a three-year programme for investing £6m in sheltered 

housing stock, which forms the main part of the green area. 

1.6.3 This capital programme can be financed from the resources that are at the 

Council’s disposal. This means that the baseline levels of capital investment are 

affordable and fully financed throughout the planning period. 

1.7 Base line debt profile 

1.7.1 The next chart forecasts movements in the level of HRA debt during the planning 

period (black line).  

Page 3



 

4 
 

£0

£10,000

£20,000

£30,000

£40,000

£50,000

£60,000

£70,000

£80,000

£90,000

2
0

2
1

.2
2

2
0

2
2

.2
3

2
0

2
3

.2
4

2
0

2
4

.2
5

2
0

2
5

.2
6

2
0

2
6

.2
7

2
0

2
7

.2
8

2
0

2
8

.2
9

2
0

2
9

.3
0

2
0

3
0

.3
1

2
0

3
1

.3
2

2
0

3
2

.3
3

2
0

3
3

.3
4

2
0

3
4

.3
5

2
0

3
5

.3
6

2
0

3
6

.3
7

2
0

3
7

.3
8

2
0

3
8

.3
9

2
0

3
9

.4
0

2
0

4
0

.4
1

2
0

4
1

.4
2

2
0

4
2

.4
3

2
0

4
3

.4
4

2
0

4
4

.4
5

2
0

4
5

.4
6

2
0

4
6

.4
7

2
0

4
7

.4
8

2
0

4
8

.4
9

2
0

4
9

.5
0

2
0

5
0

.5
1

£000 Peak Debt: £76.710m in 2026.27

 

1.7.2 The resources generated by the baseline position mean that the Council can start 

to repay debt after year 2026/27, which coincides with the end of the Council’s  

medium term budget period. Debt peaks at £76.710m in 2026/27, but the level of 

investment in new stock means borrowing will be required at well above the level 

currently indicated in the Council’s treasury management strategy statement. By 

the end of the 30 year period debt drops from its peak level to £24.051m.  

1.7.3 On these assumptions the Council is able to repay most of the borrowing required 

over a reasonable period, suggesting that the baseline programme is affordable 

and sustainable. 

1.8 Baseline – affordability 

1.8.1 The ability to repay debt within a reasonable timescale, as covered in the previous 

section, is a key indicator of the long-term affordability of the projections. Alongside 

this consideration has been given to the level of interest cover provided by the 

operating surplus on the HRA, which is shown in the chart below: 

Page 4



 

5 
 

0%

50%

100%

150%

200%

250%

300%

2
0

2
1

.2
2

2
0

2
2

.2
3

2
0

2
3

.2
4

2
0

2
4

.2
5

2
0

2
5

.2
6

2
0

2
6

.2
7

2
0

2
7

.2
8

2
0

2
8

.2
9

2
0

2
9

.3
0

2
0

3
0

.3
1

2
0

3
1

.3
2

2
0

3
2

.3
3

2
0

3
3

.3
4

2
0

3
4

.3
5

2
0

3
5

.3
6

2
0

3
6

.3
7

2
0

3
7

.3
8

2
0

3
8

.3
9

2
0

3
9

.4
0

2
0

4
0

.4
1

2
0

4
1

.4
2

2
0

4
2

.4
3

2
0

4
3

.4
4

2
0

4
4

.4
5

2
0

4
5

.4
6

2
0

4
6

.4
7

2
0

4
7

.4
8

2
0

4
8

.4
9

2
0

4
9

.5
0

2
0

5
0

.5
1

Interest Cover

 

1.8.2 This chart shows how well the HRA is able to cover the cost of interest charges on 

debt levels from its projected operating surpluses. Interest cover of less than 100% 

would indicate that the HRA is unable to afford the costs of servicing the implied 

debt levels. To ensure affordability and leave some spare capacity for emerging 

pressures, this ratio should be maintained at 125% or above. 

1.8.3 The HRA utilises its surpluses to repay debt during the period and the level of those 

operating surpluses remains within 102% to 263% of the projected charges for 

interest. Ideally, the rate of cover should increase towards the end of the 

projections as debt is repaid, but in this case the ratio is at its lowest in the last two 

years of the planning period – which coincides with debt reaching its lowest point. 

This is caused by costs rising at a faster rate than income over the long term, 

indicating a need for sustained financial discipline. 

1.9 Base Line Council Housing Stock Numbers 

1.9.1 The final baseline chart shows the expected movement in stock numbers, based on 

 current assumptions for sales, plus the development or acquisition of new units: 

Page 5



 

6 
 

2,800

2,900

3,000

3,100

3,200

3,300

3,400

3,500

3,600

2
0

2
1

.2
2

2
0

2
2

.2
3

2
0

2
3

.2
4

2
0

2
4

.2
5

2
0

2
5

.2
6

2
0

2
6

.2
7

2
0

2
7

.2
8

2
0

2
8

.2
9

2
0

2
9

.3
0

2
0

3
0

.3
1

2
0

3
1

.3
2

2
0

3
2

.3
3

2
0

3
3

.3
4

2
0

3
4

.3
5

2
0

3
5

.3
6

2
0

3
6

.3
7

2
0

3
7

.3
8

2
0

3
8

.3
9

2
0

3
9

.4
0

2
0

4
0

.4
1

2
0

4
1

.4
2

2
0

4
2

.4
3

2
0

4
3

.4
4

2
0

4
4

.4
5

2
0

4
5

.4
6

2
0

4
6

.4
7

2
0

4
7

.4
8

2
0

4
8

.4
9

2
0

4
9

.5
0

2
0

5
0

.5
1

Units HRA Closing Stock

General Stock Shared Ownership Hostel

Planned New Stock Additional Stock Stock at 1 April 2021

 

1.9.2 The projections allow for gains in the number of units from the assumed 

 programme of development and acquisitions, peaking at 3,493 units in 2032/33. 

 Thereafter the effects of continuing sales of council homes under the right to buy 

 reduce stock levels back to 3,313 homes after 30 years. 

1.10 Summary 

1.10.1 The baseline position for the HRA reflects the best available information on the 

need to spend on council housing for the foreseeable future. The level of 

investment required in the existing stock of council homes, along with the 

aspirations to develop and build new homes while regenerating sheltered stock and 

retrofitting existing stock, means that the Council will need to take out additional 

borrowing to help finance the work required. Borrowing at the levels shown in this 

report means that existing plans for investment and new build can be met, while 

increasing stock over the medium term. 

1.10.2 The baseline projections indicate that the investment assumed is broadly affordable 

and sustainable. However, they also assume that the underlying cost base will 

increase in real terms. This presents a potential risk for to address over the long 

term, to ensure that plans continue to be affordable and sustainable. 

1.10.3 There may be scope to utilise spare funding capacity to increase stock numbers 

and investment in council housing further, beyond the levels assumed in the 

baseline position. 

1.10.4 The Council could improve the financial position of the HRA and reduce its reliance 

on debt by making additional capital resources available to the HRA capital 

programme (such as other receipts from the sale of homes under the right to buy, 

from market sales or the disposal of other council assets, or by accessing 

Government Grant and other external funding streams). The financial position could 

Page 6



 

7 
 

also be improved by ensuring that operating costs are minimised for the HRA, while 

maximising income.  

2.0  PROPOSAL(S): 

2.1  Members note the annual update to the HRABP 2021/22 

3.0  OPTIONS: 

3.1  Members note the annual update to the HRABP 2021/22 

4.0  CONSULTATION: 

4.1  The annual update of the HRABP has been developed in consultation with the   

Director of Services, Group Head of Residential Services, Group Head of Corporate 

Support.  

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council   

Relevant District Ward Councillors   

Other groups/persons (please specify)  

(please see 

4.1 above) 

 

5.0    ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION 

 TO THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 (Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

 Financial   

 Legal   

 Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment   

 Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 

 Disorder Act 

  

 Sustainability   

 Asset Management/Property/Land   

 Technology   

 Other (please explain)   

6.0   IMPLICATIONS: 

6.1  The capital expenditure contained in the HRABP update is based on the proposed 

  budget for 2022/23 and the indicative budget for the following four years, which  

  have been assessed for affordability.  Future years’ budgets will continue to be  

  assessed for affordability in light of changing circumstances before approval by Full 

  Council as part of the annual budget setting process. 

6.1.1 Members should note that the baseline projections incorporate a medium-term 

efficiency programme to help keep costs down.  However, it makes no allowance 

Page 7



 

8 
 

for further growth pressures or additional costs, for example from building safety 

works, changes to the decent homes standard, regulation of social housing or 

higher interest rate charges and increased inflation and its subsequent impact on 

the cost of materials and supply chain issues.  There is a risk that costs assumed in 

the HRA Business Plan will be higher than anticipated, this will be mitigated through 

regular monitoring and continuous annual updating of the plan. 

  

6.1.2 Members should note that the Business Plan is separate to the detailed HRA 

budget for 2022/23 which will be presented to this Committee as part of the budget 

setting process on 24 January 2022. 
 

 

7.0  REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

7.1  To ensure that the HRA is able to deliver the long-term investment requirements  

  that have been identified through the updated HRABP plan forecast. 

8.0  BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

8.1  N/A 

 

Page 8



 

 

         
 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO HOUSING & WELLBEING COMMITTEE ON 
2 DECEMBER 2021 

 
REPORT 

SUBJECT:    Housing Allocations Policy 2022 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:     Claire Dyke, Housing Options Manager 

                                      Satnam Kaur, Group Head of Residential Services 

DATE:    2 December 2021 

EXTN:     37637 

AREA:                       Residential Services 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Every local housing authority must publish a Housing Allocations Policy to explain how it 

prioritises applicants and its procedures for allocating housing. All allocations must be 

made in strict accordance with the published scheme. (Housing Act 1996, section 166A(1) 

and (14)) 

 
The current Housing Allocation Policy has not been fully reviewed since 2012.  This report 
seeks approval for the adoption and implementation of the Council’s revised Housing 
Allocation Policy (HAP) 2022. 
 
The HAP sets out the criteria for: 
 

i. who can apply for housing 
ii. how housing register applications are assessed and prioritised 
iii. how homes are allocated 
iv. applicant choice and preference 

 
Implementation for the new policy is proposed for the autumn of 2022 when the new IT 
Housing Management System is mobilised in line with the approved policy. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Residential & Wellbeing Committee: 

a) approves the revised Housing Allocation Policy 2022 

b) gives delegated authority to the Group Head of Residential Services to make minor 

changes to the policy and any amendments necessary to reflect legislative changes 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

1.0  BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The current Housing Allocations Policy has not been fully reviewed since 2012, 

 other than to  make minor amendments to comply with changes in legislation.  A full 

 review of the  policy has been undertaken, with residents and key stakeholders 

 consulted over the summer of 2021.   

 

1.2 The review has enabled us to consider the impact Covid has had on the housing 

 market and the economy, including housing supply pressures and homelessness.  

 This has helped to refine the policy and the opportunity to ensure that the finite 

 resource of social housing is helping those in greatest need and making the best 

 use of stock.   

 

1.3 In reviewing the existing policy, the service has engaged with key stakeholders and 

 customers, regarding key service issues and trends identified during the life of the 

 policy, this has been an extensive process with several opportunities for feedback 

 to be provided. 

 

1.4 There are a number of changes to the policy which are set out in Appendix 1 - 

 Principal Changes to the Housing Allocation Policy. 

 

1.5 The HAP 2022 will go live in autumn 2022 following configuration and roll out of the 

new IT Housing Management System in Residential Services.   

 

1.6 For applicants already on the housing register, a re-registration process will take 

 place during the spring 2022.  This process will re-assess anyone wishing to remain 

 on the housing register and give them details about how the new policy.  Staff will be 

 available to discuss the changes and to offer further housing advice.  

 

2.   PROPOSAL(S): 

2.1  To adopt and implement the revised Housing Allocations Policy 2022 effective 

 on the date the new housing department’s ICT system is delivered (anticipated 

 autumn 2022). 

3.  OPTIONS:  

3.1  To adopt the Housing Allocation Policy 2022 

3.2       Not to adopt the policy. This is not considered a feasible option. The option not to 

 review and develop a revised Housing Allocations Policy was dismissed due to 

 changes in legislation and associated statutory guidance and the requirement to 

 ensure that our policies reflect these. 

 

Page 10



 

 

4.   CONSULTATION: 

4.1 The Council recognises the importance of involving, consulting, and raising 

 awareness with local communities about housing allocations to reach agreement 

 about an allocations policy that balances housing needs from both national and 

 local perspectives.  Consultation took place from the 23 August 2021 to the 1 

 October 2021 the results of which have been considered and included in the 

 revised policy.  

  YES NO 

  Relevant Town/Parish Council   

  Relevant District Ward Councillors   

  Other groups/persons (please specify) 

 Housing Register Applicants 

 Registered Provider Partners 

 Staff within Residential Services 

  

5.    ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION 
 TO THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
 (Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

 Financial   

 Legal   

 Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment   

 Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
 Disorder Act 

  

 Sustainability   

 Asset Management/Property/Land   

 Technology   

 Other (please explain)   

 

 

6.   IMPLICATIONS: 

6.1  Financial - there are no identified financial implications for the service through  
  implementation of the new policy. 

6.2  Legal – The Council must have a housing allocations scheme (Housing Allocations 

  Policy) in accordance with Part VI of the Housing Act 1996 (section 166A). The  

  Housing Allocations Policy must include the Council’s policy on offering people  

  choice of housing and to express a preference (a statement of choice).  There is a 

  legal requirement to consult on major changes to the Housing Allocations Policy.  

  Public consultation on the Council’s proposed revised Housing Allocations Policy  

  2022 has been completed 

 

Page 11



 

 

6.3  It is essential that the Housing Allocations Policy is reviewed from time to time to  

  ensure that it is updated in line with legislation, regulation guidance, case law and 

  Council priorities.    

7.0   REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

7.1  To ensure that the Council has a Housing Allocations Scheme that meets the legal 
  requirements as set out in Part IV of the Housing Act 1996 and reflects local  
  priorities.  

8.0   BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

Appendix 1 – Principal Changes to the Allocations Policy 

Appendix 2 – Draft Housing Allocation Policy 2022 

 

 
 

Page 12



 

 

Appendix 1 - Draft Allocations Policy 2022-26 

Principal Changes  
 

 

Ref  Change  

1.9  More detail on legislative and related framework 

2.0  New statement on choice specific to Arun 

3.0   More detail on Equality and Diversity including the Public 

Sector Equality Duty  

4.1  Housing Options Team Roles & Responsibilities 

4.2.1  Discretion available to the Housing Options Manager in 

exceptional circumstances  

4.3  Statement on Safeguarding 

6.0  Change to local connection criteria from resident for at least 

5 years to currently resident for at least 3 years 

 Change local connection criteria from currently resident and 

have previous residency for 10 out of the last 15 years to 

currently resident and have previous residency for 5 out of 

the last 10 years 

 Change to local connection criteria from working part time for 

24 hours per week to working part time for 16 hours per week 

7.3.2  Opportunity to accept applicants maintaining a payment plan 

on housing related debts  

7.5  Changes to the income and savings qualification levels  

10.0  Less onerous registration/verification process.  More detailed 

verification will take place at offer stage  

17.6  Local Lettings Plans 

18.4  Simplified statement on bedroom entitlement  

19.9  Revised selection criteria for offers of accommodation 

20.0  New section on review and appeal  

21.0  More detail on data protection  

22.4  Discretion available to the Group Head of Residential 

Services to make minor amendments to the Scheme 

between reviews required due to changes in legislation, 

statutory guidance and local need 

Page 13



 

 

Ref  Change  

Appendix A  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Banding changes 

 

Band A - changes to subcategories: 

 A1 (description of medical need) 

 A5 (Fixed Term Tenancies) and A6 (Decant) deleted as 

these are no longer relevant 

 New A10 (homelessness main duty moved to Band A) 

 A11 Homeless Making Own Arrangements given increased 

priority to disincentivise the use of Temporary 

Accommodation while ensuring safeguarding through home 

visits and other checks  

Band B – changes to subcategories  

 B1 (description of medical need) 

 B2 moved to A11  

 Subcategories renumbered accordingly  

 B2 (Homelessness Relief Stage) moved from C2 

 B6 (Returning from institution) removed 

 B6 (Homelessness Prevention Stage) moved from C2 

 B7 (removal of care) 

 B9 (Additional Preference for people fleeing domestic abuse) 

 B10 (Additional preference for young people leaving local 

authority care) 

Band C – changes to subcategories: 

 C1 (description of medical need) 

 C2 (Homelessness Prevention stage) to B6 

 C5 (Management Transfer) removal 

New Band D 

 D1 (Older people with no local connection made eligible for 

low demand sheltered housing)  

 D2 (dealing with applicants for Community Land Trust 

allocations) 

 D3 Reduced priority – no bids in six months 

Appendix A 

D3 

Addressing the issue of applicants given the highest priority; 

reasonable preference or additional preference not bidding for 

properties that would meet their needs  

 

Page 14



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
            
 

HOUSING ALLOCATIONS 
POLICY 

 

Policy Date 2022 

Approved by  Housing & Wellbeing Committee 

 

Page 15



 

 

2 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

CONTENTS 
 

Section Title Page 

1 Introduction 4 

2 Choice 6 

3 Equality & Diversity 7 

4 Roles & Responsibilities  7 

5 The Housing Register  8 

6 Local Connection  9 

7 Exclusions from the Housing Register  11 

8 Making the Application  13 

9 Processing the Application  15 

10 Verifying the Application  16 

11 Assessment  16 

12 Registration  17 

13 Change of Circumstance  18 

14 Intentionally Altering Circumstances and False Information 19 

15 Renewing Applications  20 

16 Removals from the Housing Register  20 

Page 16



 

 

3 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

17 Housing Needs Bandings  21 

18 Advertising Properties  23 

19 Bidding and Selection 25 

20 Review and Appeal 28 

21 Data Protection  29 

22 Performance and Monitoring  29 

Appendix 
A 

Banding Tables 31 

 
  

Page 17



 

 

4 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

1.0 Introduction  

 

1.1 The Allocations Policy sets out the priorities and procedures for the allocation 

of social rented housing in the Arun District.  It applies to both (1) applicants 

joining the Housing Register for the first time and (2) current Arun District 

Council (ADC) or Registered Provider (Registered Provider) tenants wanting to 

transfer.  

 

1.2 ADC is required under Section 166A of the Housing Act 1996 to have a 

Housing Allocations Scheme for determining priorities and to advise on our 

procedures in selecting a household for Local Authority or other Social 

Housing Registered Provider (RP) accommodation.  

 

1.3 The Allocations Policy operates under the provisions of the Housing Act 1996, 

the Homelessness Act 2002, the Localism Act 2011, Homelessness Reduction 

Act 2017 and the relevant Codes of Guidance including the Allocation of 

Accommodation: Guidance for Local Housing Authorities in England. 

 

1.4 ADC is committed to the principles of Choice Based Lettings in enabling people 

to make well-informed decisions about their housing options.  Available vacant 

properties are advertised for applicants on the Housing Register to place ‘bids’ 

for properties suitable for their housing needs and in their desired location. ADC 

considers that this element of choice helps to improve the sustainability of 

housing stock and encourages residents to have a stake in their community.  

 

1.5 The ability to enable and offer choice will be balanced against the availability 

of homes and the requirement to ensure that those in greatest housing need 

are given priority for housing. 

 

1.6 The key aims and objectives of this Allocations Policy are to: 

 

 Allow ADC to best manage its Housing Register and make the best use of its 

housing stock to meet local needs, local circumstances including to help 

promote safe, balanced and sustainable communities 

 Allocate housing fairly, consistently and carefully and to ensure that our 

decisions are transparent 

 Target scarce resources to those in the greatest need 

 Ensure sufficient priority is awarded to applicants (including transferring 

tenants) in order to make best use of social housing stock 

 Effectively deliver ADC’s Tenancy, Housing and Homelessness Strategies in 

a way that also takes into account the needs of local communities 

 

Page 18



 

 

5 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

1.7  The Policy is based on key principles shared by ADC and our RP partners, which 

include: 

 

 Creating sustainable communities, having regard to local circumstances 

 Removing barriers to accessing social housing for homeless households 

 Meeting the emergency and long-term housing needs of people fleeing 

domestic violence and abuse 

 Meeting the housing needs of people leaving care  

 Improving access to suitable homes for people with disabilities 

 Allocating housing in a way which complements the ADC Tenancy and 

Lettings Policy and the tenancy policies of our RP partners  

 Ensuring vulnerable households can navigate the allocations process by 

providing clear and easy to understand information 

 Enabling applicants to express choice in selecting their accommodation 

where possible 

 

1.8 The Allocations Policy applies to ADC as a provider of social housing and our RP 

partners which currently include: 

 

 Worthing Homes 

 Arun Housing 

 VIVID 

 Sage Housing 

 Sanctuary Housing  

 Southern Housing Group  

 The Hyde Group  

 Places for People 

 Clarion Housing Association 

 Hastoe Housing Association 

 Stonewater Ltd 

 Saxon Weald  

 Guinness Homes  

 Optivo  

 

1.9 In framing the Allocation Policy, ADC has had regard to relevant legislation and 
 regulations, including: 

 

 Housing Act 1996 as amended  

 Housing Act 1985 as amended 

 Localism Act 2011 

 Homelessness Reduction Act 2017  

Page 19



 

 

6 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 Domestic Abuse Act 2021 

 Allocation of Accommodation: Guidance for Local Housing Authorities in 

England 

 Homelessness Code of Guidance for Local Authorities 

 Improving Access to Social Housing for Members of the Armed Forces 

Statutory Guidance 

 Equality Act 2010 

 Human Rights Act 1998 

 Freedom of Information Act 2000 

 Data Protection Act 2018  

 Welfare Reform Act 2012 

2.0 Choice 

 

2.1 ADC is committed to the principles of Choice Based Lettings, enabling people to 

make well-informed decisions about their housing options.  ADC considers that 

choice helps to improve tenancy and community sustainment and encourage 

residents to have a stake in their community.  

 

2.2 Due to the high demand for social housing, the ability to enable and offer choice must 

be balanced against the availability of homes, the best management of housing stock 

and the requirement to ensure that those in greatest housing need are given priority 

for housing. 

 

2.3 Applicants on the Housing Register can bid for properties suitable for their housing 

needs and in their chosen location. 

 

2.4 The properties are advertised online. ADC will provide relevant information about the 

property, together with links to information about the local neighbourhood in order to 

help applicants to make informed decisions about the properties on which they wish 

to bid.   

 

2.5 ADC aims to provide choice in the allocation of social housing in the Arun district. 

However, in a number of exceptional circumstances this will not be possible. In such 

cases a property will be let to an applicant on the Housing Register as a direct offer 

and the property will not be advertised in accordance with the Allocations Policy. Full 

details of such circumstances are set out in this Allocations Policy. 

 

2.6 ADC will support those Applicants who do not qualify to join the Housing Register or 

those who are on the Housing Register but may have a long time to wait for an offer 

due to their priority need by providing  advice in relation to alternative housing options, 

including: 

 

Page 20



 

 

7 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 Use of the private sector 

 Home ownership 

 Intermediate housing 

 Build to rent 

 First Homes 

 Local Housing Companies 

 Mutual exchange 

3.0  Equality and Diversity  

 

3.1 ADC promotes equality in the services it provides and is committed to delivering a 

fair and equitable service that is appropriate and accessible to all sections of the 

communities it serves.  

 

3.2 The Allocations Policy has regard to ADC’s public sector equality duty as defined in 

s149 of the Equality Act 2010. ADC operates an Equality and Diversity policy and 

has given due regard to the Equality Act 2010, particularly Chapter 1 (protected 

characteristics) and Chapter 2 (Prohibited Conduct).  The letting of property will be 

in accordance with the individual Equality and Diversity policies of ADC and our RP 

partners.     

 

3.3 Access to the policy may be more difficult for people with a disability, sight, or 

hearing impairment and for those who do not speak English as a first language. 

ADC is committed to helping all those who need assistance to access the policy. A 

full copy of the Allocations Policy will also be provided to an applicant in an 

alternative format and/or language upon request.  

4.0 Roles and Responsibilities  

 

4.1 Housing Options Team  

 

Role  Responsibility  

Assistant 

Housing 

Options 

Officers  

Managing the Housing Register including eligibility, qualification, 

verification, assessment, registration, banding, allocation, and 

nomination stages 

 

Assisting vulnerable applicants with registration and bidding 

 

Proving housing options advice for people who are unable to join 

the Housing Register   

Housing 

Options 

Officers  

Managing homelessness cases including prevention and relief

   

Assisting vulnerable applicants with registration and bidding 

Page 21



 

 

8 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 

Housing options advice for people who are unable to join the 

Housing Register   

Housing 

Options 

Team 

Leaders  

Managing main duty and direct allocation decisions 

 

Handling appeals on decisions made by Assistant Housing 

Options Officers and Housing Options Officers  

Housing 

Options 

Manager 

Overall responsibility for the Housing Register, homelessness 

decisions, appeals, exceptional circumstances and direct 

allocations  

 

Residential 

Services 

Manager 

Ability to make minor changes to the Allocations Policy 

 

4.2. Exceptional Circumstances 

 

4.2.1. The Allocation Policy may be overridden where the Housing Options Manager 

considers that an individual’s exceptional circumstances warrant a departure from 

any part of this policy. 

 

4.2.2. The Housing Options Manager must record the reasons for any decision that 

departs from the Allocations Policy and has the written or emailed agreement of 

the Group Head of Residential Services. 

 

4.3. Safeguarding  

 

4.3.1. Where ADC reasonably determines that there is sufficient evidence that a child or 

adult may be at risk, we will act promptly and in accordance with our safeguarding 

policies and procedures.    

5.0 The Housing Register 

 

5.1 To join the Housing Register applicants must both qualify for inclusion on the 

register and be eligible for housing. The threshold for both of these conditions are 

detailed below.  

 

5.2 Where a person is not a qualifying person for inclusion on the Housing Register, 

does not satisfy the eligibility criteria, and/or is disqualified from the Housing 

Register because of any of the criteria set out below, they will not be able to join the 

Housing Register. 

 

Page 22



 

 

9 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

5.3 Applicants aged 16 or over who have been assessed as meeting the threshold 

conditions for inclusion on the Housing Register will be permitted to complete a full 

application. However tenancies are not usually offered until they are over 18.  

 

5.4 Eligibility  

 

5.4.1 Eligibility is set out in section 160ZA of the Housing Act 1996 (as amended by the 

Localism Act 2011).  

 

5.4.2 A person may not be allocated accommodation under the Housing Act 1996 Part XI 

if they are a person from abroad who is ineligible for an allocation. There are two 

categories for this purpose:  

 

 A person subject to immigration control  

Such person is not eligible for an allocation of accommodation unless they 

are of a class prescribed in regulations made by the Secretary of State 

(s160ZA(2)), or  

 

 A person from abroad who is not subject to immigration control  

Regulations may provide for other descriptions of persons from abroad who, 

although not subject to immigration control, are to be treated as ineligible for 

an allocation of accommodation (s106ZA(4)). 

 

5.4.3 The categories are subject to change.  ADC will advise Applicants from abroad on 

the regulations and how they affect their application. 

 

5.5 Qualifying Persons 

 

5.5.1 ADC is permitted to set qualifying criteria for people applying to the Housing 

Register and can only allocate accommodation to people who are defined as 

‘qualifying persons’. Subject to the requirement not to allocate to persons who are 

ineligible (set out at paragraph 5.4.2 above) and the exception for members of the 

Armed and Reserve Forces (set out at paragraph 6.2 below), ADC may decide the 

class of people who are, or are not, qualifying persons.  

 

5.5.2 ADC has decided that it will only make an allocation to persons who qualify as a 

result of all of the criteria set out at paragraphs 6 - 7 below.  

6.0 Local Connection 

 

6.1  Where an applicant can demonstrate that they have a local connection to the Arun 

 district. To establish a local connection an applicant must meet at least one of the 

 following conditions: 

 

Page 23



 

 

10 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 The Applicant and /o r  their partner is currently living in the Arun district as 

their principal home and has lived in the Arun district as their principle home 

continuously for at least 3 years immediately prior to the application date. 

 

 The Applicant and/or their partner is currently living in the Arun district as 

their principle home and has lived in the Arun District as their principle home 

for at least 5 non-consecutive years in the last 10-year period prior to the 

application date. Examples of this could be hospital, HMP, temporary 

lodgings, and refuges. 

 

 The Applicant and/or their partner can evidence full or part time work (at least 

16 hours per week) in the Arun District continuously for the past 2 years and 

remains working in the Arun District as at the application date. 

 

 The Applicant and/or their partner needs to be in the Arun District to give 

or receive regular daily support from or to a close relative (parents, adult 

children, siblings). The support must be such that it is required on an ongoing 

and long-term basis and is not capable of being provided by other family 

members or available support agencies. The close relative must be 

permanently resident in the Arun District and have lived in the district 

continuously for at least 10 years immediately prior to the application date. 

 

6.2  There are exceptions to the local connection requirement. ADC will not disqualify the 

 following applicants on the grounds that they do not have a local connection: 

 

 Serving or former members of the Armed Forces where the application is 

made within five years of discharge 

 

 Bereaved or divorced or separated spouses and civil partners of members 

of the Armed Forces leaving services family accommodation following the 

death of their spouse or partner, or divorce or separation 

 

 Serving or former members of the Reserve Forces who require a move 

because of serious injury, medical condition or disability sustained wholly or 

partly as a result of their service 

 

 Those who have been accepted by ADC as being owed the main homeless 

duty. The Homelessness main duty is defined as the main duty under Part 

XII of the Housing Act 1996 (as amended) 

 

 Young persons who are owed a ‘leaving care’ duty by West Sussex County 

Council (WSCC) under section 23C of the Children Act 1989 

 

Page 24



 

 

11 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 People who have experienced domestic abuse as defined by the Domestic 

Abuse Act 2021 and have established accommodation in refuge or other 

temporary accommodation located in the ADC district and it is safe to remain 

in the ADC District 

 

 People over 60 – such applicants with no local connection will be considered 

for sheltered accommodation only where there is no other competing housing 

need 

7.0  Exclusions from the Housing Register 

 

7.1 ADC reserves the right to exclude someone from the Housing Register where having 

 considered all of the available evidence ADC is satisfied that one or more of the 

 following applies to their household: 

 

7.2 Unacceptable Behaviour 

 

7.2.1 ADC considers unacceptable behaviour to be where the Applicant, or a member of 

the household, has been guilty of unacceptable behaviour within the past 5 years, 

which if the Applicant was a tenant of ADC would entitle ADC to obtain a possession 

order against them on one or more of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Housing Act 1985. 

 

7.2.2 Applicants excluded because of unacceptable behaviour will remain excluded for a 

period of 5 years from the date of the unacceptable behaviour incident or offence. 

Applicants may re-apply to the housing register after this period of exclusion. 

  

7.2.3 Unacceptable behaviour can include: 

 

 Engaging in anti-social and/or violent behaviour in or their home or its locality 

 Engaging in behaviour in their home or its locality which causes or is likely to 

cause harm, distress, nuisance and/or annoyance 

 Engaging in behaviour which is considered domestic abuse 

 Conviction of an arrestable offence committed in their home or its locality 

 Conviction of an arrestable offence relating to violence or threats of violence 

against a member staff at ADC or its RP partners  

 Using accommodation or allowing its use for immoral or illegal purposes 

 Damage to property  

 Being subject to an order for Demoted Tenancy, Civil Injunction, Criminal 

Behaviour Order, Community Protection Notice or Noise Abatement Notice 

 Making a false statement to obtain a tenancy 

 Benefit fraud 

Page 25



 

 

12 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

7.3 Rent arrears and Housing Related Debt 

 

7.3.1 Applicants with rent arrears or housing related debts to ADC or other RPs will not be 

accepted onto the Housing Register save for the exceptions at paragraph 7.3.3 

below.  

 

7.3.2 ADC will consider an applicant with rent arrears or housing related debts onto the 

Housing Register where it can be evidenced that the applicant has maintained a 

regular repayment plan for a minimum of twelve months. In such case, the housing 

related debts will be further reviewed by ADC or RP partners at the point of offer and 

in accordance with their Tenancy/Lettings Policy. 

 

7.3.3 Applicants with housing related debts due solely to the social sector size criteria 

(bedroom tax), will qualify to join the Housing Register where there is a housing need 

to downsize to a smaller property and where the debts will be cleared by qualification 

for the Under-Occupation Incentive Policy.   

 

7.3.4 Housing related debt includes:  

 

 Current rent and service charges  

 Rent bonds and deposits 

 Any recoverable payments made on behalf of the applicant in respect of 

homelessness 

 Debts in relation to previous tenancies with ADC or our RP partners 

 Council Tax debt 

 Housing benefit overpayment 

 Storage and removal costs  

 Rechargeable repairs  

 Support charges 

 Legal costs  

 

7.3.5 ADC will carry out verification of housing related debts and will exempt any debts 

which result from benefit delay and the applicant will remain excluded from the 

Housing Register until the debt is cleared in full. 

7.4  Homeowners 

 

7.4.1  Applicants will not qualify for inclusion on the Housing Register if they or a member 

of their household own their own residential property or part own a property by way 

of a shared ownership or subsided scheme in the UK or abroad.  

 

7.4.2 At ADC’s sole discretion, an Applicant may be accepted on to the Housing Register 

where the owned residential property is no longer suitable on medical grounds and/or 

Page 26



 

 

13 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

the applicant does not have the financial resources to meet their housing costs 

through the sale of the property. ADC considers the circumstances below as 

examples for when this may apply:  

 

 Those who are in financial difficulty because their home is being repossessed 

 Those who meet the criteria for older persons housing  

 Those who require specialist housing because they have a disability or a 

medical condition where their current accommodation cannot be adapted 

 Those who are fleeing domestic abuse and where a homeless duty has been 

accepted 

7.5 Applicants with Financial Means to obtain Alternative Housing 

 

7.5.1 Applicants (including joint applicants and applicants with a partner) with a combined 

gross annual income in excess of £50,000 per year (not including means tested 

benefits) will not qualify for inclusion on the Housing Register.  

 

7.5.2 Applicants (including joint applicants and applicants with a partner) with combined 

savings in excess of £16,000 (or £50,000 for applicants eligible for sheltered housing) 

will not qualify to be included on the Housing Register.  Savings includes accessible 

equity within a property.  

 

7.5.3 The income and savings criteria do not apply to current tenants of ADC seeking to 

downsize.   

 

7.5.4 Armed Forces compensation payments will not be considered in calculations of 

financial resources. 

 

7.6 Any exceptions in this regard must be assessed on a case by case basis and be at 

the absolute discretion and authority of the Head of Housing. 

 

8.0. Making the Application 

 

8.1. All applicants are to complete an online application form to join the housing register. 

The form is found on ADC’s website: (to be confirmed when our new system is in 

place) 

 

8.2. ADC will provide help to complete an application form upon request from the 

Applicant, a partner agency supporting the Applicant, or where it is clear that an 

Applicant is being disadvantaged by the online process.   

 

Page 27



 

 

14 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

8.3. Full details as to the application form can be found on ADC’s website. (to be confirmed 

when our new system is in place) 

 

8.4. People who can be included in the Application 

 

8.4.1 In their application, an applicant can only include people who normally live with them 

or might reasonably be expected to live with them as a member of their household. 

This will usually mean members of the applicants family to be: 

 

 Spouse, civil partner or committed partner (a committed partnership will be 

evidenced by proven relationship of at least 12 months) 

 Dependent children  

 

8.4.2 In respect of dependent children, this normally means children for whom the applicant 

has principal caring responsibility and who resides with the applicant for the majority 

of the week. Child Benefit may be used as an indicator of usual residence for these 

purposes.  

 

8.4.3 ADC can decide whether a person is normally resident as a member of the 

household. A Housing options Team Leader (or above) has the discretion to allow 

additional people to be included on the application when they consider it appropriate 

taking into account all of the circumstances 

 

8.5  Joint Applications 

 

8.5.1 Where more than one eligible applicant wishes to have a shared application they will 

be considered as joint applicants.  

 

8.5.2 Joint tenancies will normally be offered to couples where marriage, civil partnership 

or a committed partnership is evidenced. A committed partnership will be evidenced 

by proven relationship of at least 12 months. Other adults who are not partners of 

the applicant (such as residential carers) will only be accepted as joint applicants 

based on evidence of need.  

 

8.5.3 All proposed Joint Applicants must be meet the conditions for eligibility and qualify 

for inclusion on the Housing Register set out above. Joint Applicants will not be 

accepted where any proposed joint applicant does not meet such criteria. For 

example, where one of the applicants is a person from abroad who is ineligible, the 

other applicant(s) will be registered as the sole applicant.  

 

8.5.4 If Joint Applicants seek to amend their application to individual sole applications (for 

example, due to relationship breakdown) and wish to remain on the Housing 

Page 28



 

 

15 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Register, each sole applicant will retain the application date of the original joint 

application as long as they are still entitled to join the Housing Register. Where there 

are children included within the original joint application, only the Applicant with 

residency and parenting responsibilities may include such children on the sole 

application. The other applicant must not include the children, even if there are 

shared custody or access arrangements.  

8.6  Non-Resident Children  

 

8.6.1  Applicants with access to children who they would like to include in their application 

will need to demonstrate their involvement and the care and supervision of the child.  

 

8.6.2 Unless there is an exceptional circumstance, it is unlikely that non-resident children 

will be considered as part of the household when assessing an application where the 

applicant not the primary carer for the child - even if they have 50% access rights to 

their child. 

 

8.6.3 In considering an application containing non-resident children, a Senior Officer within 

ADC will give consideration to all facts of the matter, including, regularity of contact, 

the relevant person in receipt of any benefits in respect of the child and any residency 

orders to assist in determining primary responsibility for the children.  

 

8.7 Transferring Tenants 

 

8.7.1 Tenants of ADC may apply to move to alternative ADC and/or RP owned property if 

they meet the criteria to join the Housing Register as at the time they wish to seek to 

transfer. 

 

8.7.2 As part of the application to transfer, a reference will be provided by the 

Neighbourhood Housing Team to verify that there are no grounds for exclusion 

described at Section 7 of this Allocations Policy. 

 

8.7.3 Our RP partners operate their own transfer policies and their tenants can apply to 

join the Housing Register if they meet the criteria to join the Housing Register. 

9.0. Processing the Application 

 

9.1. Prior to an Applicant being placed on the Housing Register, the application form must 

be verified and the Applicant’s needs must be assessed based on the information 

provided on the application form. Once this is complete, ADC will register the 

application and provide a registration date.  

 

Page 29



 

 

16 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

9.2. The registration date is the date the application is fully verified, or in the case of 

homeless applicants to whom a full duty is accepted, is the date that ADC accepts a 

duty to accommodate, whichever is earlier. 

 

9.3. Where an Applicant disagrees with their registration date, their priority band or the 

assessment of their needs, they may request a review. If the Applicant is dissatisfied 

with the review decision, they have a final right of appeal as set out at Section 20 of 

this Allocations Policy. 

 

10.0. Verifying the Application 

 

10.1. An application will be verified upon the production of satisfactory documents 

including, but not limited to, those listed below. ADC may request further 

information as required. The verification documents are: 

 

 2 x items of identification for all adult members of the household listed within 

the application. Ideally, one photographic ID in respect of personal identity 

(such as passport, driving license or birth certificate) and one showing their 

current address (such as a utility bill or bank statement) 

 For any child in the household, evidence of receipt of child benefit or child tax 

credit 

 Proof of the right to reside in the UK 

 

10.2. Applicants from abroad will be required to provide proof of their nationality and 

immigration status which must be verified. 

 

10.3. ADC may undertake further verification such as identity, address and income checks 

and it may be necessary to visit an Applicant at home in order to assess the current 

housing circumstances. 

 

11.0 Assessment 

 

11.1 Applications will be assessed based on the information provided on the application 

form. It is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure that the form has been completed 

accurately 

 

11.2 Applicants will be requested to provide supporting documents in order to enable 

their application to be properly assessed within any reasonable timescale given. 

 

11.3 ADC may request additional information or evidence where the details provided are 

not clear or not relevant to the information requested. 

 

Page 30



 

 

17 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

11.4 Incorrect information could result in a change in priority at any stage of the process.  

False information could result in exclusion from the Housing Register. 

 

11.5 ADC will seek from the Applicant most of the documents to evidence the content of 

the application form at the point of nomination (matching the applicant for a 

property) and/or making an offer. This process may differ in accordance with the 

requirements of any RP partner as described in their Tenancy/Lettings Policies. 

 

11.6 Without applicable information it may not be possible to award any level of priority, 

and ADC and/or its RP partners may decline to offer a property. Therefore, if 

information is not provided, ADC may ask landlords or agencies for this information 

to enable assessment of the applicant’s eligibility, qualification, entitlement and 

housing need.  

11.7 Medical and/or Care Needs 

 

11.7.1 Applicants with medical and/or care needs which may be improved or relieved by a 

move should include these details on the housing register application form. 

 

11.7.2 ADC will assess the reported impact of the current accommodation and how that 

impact might be reduced by moving to alternative accommodation. This assessment 

will determine the medical priority of the application. 

 

11.7.3 ADC may require additional evidence in order to assess relevant medical and/or 

care needs, the impact that the current housing is having on such medical and/or 

care need, and the effect of a move to an alternative property on such condition. 

Such evidence may include evidence and/or opinion from a relevant medical 

professional, social services or other individuals or agencies, as appropriate. The 

Applicant is responsible for obtaining such evidence, opinion or information and any 

associated cost. 

 

11.7.4 ADC may seek its own specialist advice to determine medical, mental health or care 

needs.  

 

11.7.5 A home visit may be carried out to aid the assessment.  

 

11.7.6 ADC may seek the advice of the Occupational Therapy service to assess housing 

needs when a member of the household has a substantial and permanent physical 

disability or other mobility needs 

 

12.0 Registration  

 

12.1 As part of the process, the Applicant is required to: 

Page 31



 

 

18 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 

 Provide information to verify any application within 14 days of the application 

being made 

 Keep ADC informed of any changes of circumstances 

 Ensure that ADC have an up to date address 

 Reply to requests for information as quickly as possible 

 Treat ADC staff with courtesy 

 Give accurate information regarding personal circumstances 

12.2  A failure to act in accordance with the above may result in an application being 

refused or rejected from consideration.  

12.3 ADC will aim to adhere to the timescales set out below: 

 

 Register applications within 14 working days of the receipt of all verification 

documents 

 Process changes in circumstances within 14 working days 

 Reply to letters within 10 working days 

 Provide advice to Applicants to help them with bidding choices by phone, 

email and in person 

12.4 The Applicant will receive written confirmation of their registration date, their priority 

status and reason for it and the property size for which they can bid. 

 

12.5 If the Applicant disagrees with their registration date, their priority band, or the 

assessment of their needs, they can appeal as described in the Review and Appeal 

section below. 

 

13.0. Change of Circumstances 

 

13.1. Applicants are required to inform ADC immediately when there is a change in their 

housing circumstances, or any other circumstances relevant to their application. The 

Applicant is required to promptly provide any documentary evidence of the change 

as requested by ADC. 

 

13.2. ADC will reassess the Applicant’s position and determine whether the change in 

circumstances results in a change to the Applicant’s eligibility, qualification or priority 

banding. Any such change will be communicated to the applicant in writing. The 

Applicant will also be advised of their new priority date if applicable and their right 

to appeal.  

 

Page 32



 

 

19 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

13.3. If the Applicant is moved into a higher band, then their priority date will be the date 

they were accepted into the higher band. If the Applicant is moved to a lower band 

then their priority date will be their original acceptance date. 

 

13.4. Any change of circumstance to include additional adults as part of the application 

(who were not included in the original application) will not be accepted where this 

results in the need for larger accommodation than the Applicant’s household was 

originally eligible unless satisfactory evidence of an overriding medical, mobility, or 

care need is provided. This will be considered by a Housing Options Team Leader 

on a case by case basis.   

 

13.5. Applicants who require an additional bedroom to enable full time (24 hour) care, or 

couples who need to have separate bedrooms for this reason, may include this on 

their application subject to evidence of need. 

 

13.6. An Applicant or member of their registered household expecting a child or children 

will be able to include the child or children on their application from 6 months into 

the pregnancy and have their housing need and housing requirements reassessed 

accordingly.  

 

14.0 Intentionally Altering Circumstances and False Information 

 

14.1 Applicants have a responsibility not to intentionally alter their circumstances in such 

a way as to allow them to join the Housing Register and/or to progress to a higher 

band or greater priority need. Examples of such behaviour includes:  

 

 Where an Applicant has voluntarily given up accommodation which is suitable 

for their needs  

 Where a deliberate act results in or contributes to overcrowding, or other 

housing circumstances without good reason 

 Where an Applicant has failed to take ADC’s advice regarding their housing 

need without good reason 

 

14.2 Where an Applicant has intentionally altered their circumstances in such a way, ADC 

 may assess the application based on previous circumstances only, based on their 

 previous accommodation prior to the intentional act.  

 

14.3 It is an offence under section 171 of the Housing Act 1996 to intentionally provide 

 false information or intentionally withhold information that should have been given to 

 ADC.  If an Applicant intentionally provides false information or withholds information 

 when applying to ADC for housing, ADC will exclude the application from the housing 

 register for a period of 5 years. ADC may also take legal action against the Applicant. 

 This could include a fine of up to £5000.  

Page 33



 

 

20 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 

14.4 If the Applicant has already been granted a tenancy, and false information was used 

 to obtain it, ADC may take action using the powers of the Housing Act 1996 and the 

 Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act 2013.  

 

14.5 Allocations of accommodation made to employees of ADC or to Arun District 

 Councillors, or to members of their family where these family links are known to ADC, 

 will be checked and authorised by the Group Head of Residential Services to 

 ensure these allocations comply  fully with the Allocations Policy.  

15.0 Renewing Applications 

 

15.1. ADC will write to an Applicant on or after the anniversary of their application to 

establish whether the Applicant wishes to remain on the Housing Register and to 

confirm that the Applicant’s household circumstances have not changed. 

 

15.2. If no response is received by ADC within 14 days, ADC will assume that the 

Applicant no longer requires assistance and their application will be cancelled and 

removed from the register. ADC will seek to make additional contact with vulnerable 

Applicants as appropriate.   

 

15.3. Applicants who have not placed a bid during a twelve-month period will be subject 

to the same review process. ADC will take account of the availability of suitable 

properties for bidding during the 12-month period. 

 

16.0 Removals from the Housing Register 

 

16.1 An application may be removed from the Housing Register in the following  

 circumstances: 

 

 The Applicant no longer qualifies for the Housing Register and/or the 

Applicant is no longer eligible to be on the Housing Register 

 The Applicant does not respond to correspondence within 14 days 

 The Applicant requests their application be cancelled 

 The Applicant has been rehoused 

 The Applicant successfully moves under the Mutual Exchange Policy 

 

16.2 The Applicant will be notified in writing if ADC intends to remove them from the 

Housing Register and will be given the reasons for removal and the time period, 

where appropriate. 

 

16.3 Where an Applicant disagrees with the decision to remove their application from the 

Housing Register, they can request a review. If the Applicant is dissatisfied with the 

Page 34



 

 

21 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

review decision, they have a final right of appeal in accordance with Section 21 of 

this Allocations Policy.  

 

17.0 Housing Needs Bandings  

 

17.1 There are four priority bands as listed below.  

 

 Band A: Emergency and high priority  

 Band B: High priority including reasonable preference   

 Band C: Medium priority  

 Band D: Low or deferred priority  

 

17.2 Once an application is fully assessed it will be placed in a one of the subcategories 

defined within each priority reflecting the housing need of the application, including 

reasonable preference.  

  

17.3 To prioritise between Applicants of the same band, additional criteria are applied 

as set out in the tables at Appendix 1 

 

17.4 Applicants may fall into more than one of these categories. In such cases, the 

highest priority band will apply.  

 

17.5 Reasonable Preference 

 

17.5.1 ADC is required to give reasonable preference to the following categories of 

person: 

 

 Those who are threatened with homelessness (to whom ADC owes a 

‘Prevention’ duty); or homeless (to whom ADC owes a ‘Relief’ duty); or to 

whom a main homelessness duty has been accepted. These definitions 

are set out within the Housing Act 1996 (as amended) and the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017.  These applicants are placed in: 

- Band A as defined by Priority A8, A9, A10; or 

- Band B, as defined by Priorities B2 & B6 

 

 Those in unsanitary or overcrowded housing or living in unsatisfactory 

conditions. These applicants are placed in: 

- Band A, as defined by Priority A5; 

- Band B, as defined by Priority B4; or 

- Band C, as defined by Priority C6 

 

 Those who need to move on medical or welfare grounds, including a 

disability. These applicants are placed in: 

Page 35



 

 

22 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

- Band C as defined by Priority C1 

 

 Those who need to live in a particular locality in the district, where failure to 

meet that need would cause hardship to themselves or others. This 

includes social housing tenants who need to move for work-related reasons. 

These applicants are placed in: 

-  Band C, as defined by Priority C4. 

 

17.6 Local Lettings Plan 

 

17.6.1 A local lettings plan is an agreement between ADC and an RP Partner. It sets out 

how properties will be allocated in exceptional circumstances in certain areas to 

meet area specific issues.  

 

17.6.2 The aim of a local lettings plan is to assist ADC or RP Partners in establishing and 

sustaining mixed, stable, and sustainable communities to foster a sense of 

ownership and community. 

 

17.6.3 Local Lettings Plans will be agreed by the Housing Options Manager and the 

Strategy and Enabling Manager (or above) at ADC in conjunction with Senior 

Officers at the relevant partners, and will be published on ADC’s website. 

 

17.6.4 A local lettings plan will supplement the Allocations Policy. Any properties subject 

to a plan will be clearly labelled when advertised for lettings. 

 

17.6.5 Local lettings plans may include but are not limited, allocating priority as follows:  

 

 Setting age criteria for properties in certain areas 

 Allocating preference to applicants with a local connection or who already 

live or work in the relevant area 

 Allocating preference to Applicants who are giving or receiving support to or 

from family/extended family, voluntary work, day care, playgroups or other 

support from locally-based organisations  

 Allocating preference to Applicants who are employed 

 Allocating preference to household certain types e.g. couples without 

children, where there is a high density of families with children 

 Allocating preference in accordance with Community Land Trust 

Developments 

 Allocating preference in accordance with Rural Housing 

 Allocating preference in accordance with local management agreements  

 

  

Page 36



 

 

23 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

18.0 Advertising Properties 

 

18.1 Available properties will be advertised on ADC’s Choice Based Lettings website. 

(to be confirmed when our new system is in place)The advertisement will provide 

information about the property, including but not limited to: 

 

 The rent charge and whether an ‘affordable’ or a ‘social’ rent is being applied 

 The level of care and support available 

 Permissions to keep pets 

 Whether the property is owned by ADC or one of its RP Partners 

 Estimated date of availability 

 Whether a local letting plan applies 

 

18.2 ADC seeks to promote responsible pet ownership and will make decisions in relation 

to permission for pets in accordance with the Pets Policy and terms of tenancy. (to 

be confirmed when our new system is in place) Equally, RP partners will make 

decisions regarding pets in accordance with their policies and terms of tenancy.  

 

18.3 The advertisement will set out the eligibility criteria, including but not limited to:  

 

 Size of household 

 Suitability for children 

 Age limitations 

 Suitable care and support needs 

 Whether it is sheltered accommodation 

 

18.4 ADC needs to ensure that all properties are used as effectively as possible and will 

advertise and allocate social housing vacancies properties with a bedroom 

entitlement for each of the following:  

 

 Single 

Person 

Single 

Person 

with 

access 

to 

children 

(*) 

Couple Couple 

or Lone 

Parent 

Plus 1 

Other 

Couple or 

Lone 

Parent 

Plus 2 

others 

Couple 

or Lone 

Parent 

Plus 3 

Others 

Couple 

or Lone 

Parent 

Plus 4 

or More 

Others 

Studio      

 

    

1 Bedroom 

Flat 

          

Page 37



 

 

24 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 Single 

Person 

Single 

Person 

with 

access 

to 

children 

(*) 

Couple Couple 

or Lone 

Parent 

Plus 1 

Other 

Couple or 

Lone 

Parent 

Plus 2 

others 

Couple 

or Lone 

Parent 

Plus 3 

Others 

Couple 

or Lone 

Parent 

Plus 4 

or More 

Others 

1 Bedroom 

House 

          

1 Bedroom 

Bungalow 

          

2 Bedroom 

Flat  

          

2 Bedroom 

House  

         

2 Bedroom 

Bungalow  

 (**)       (**)   

3 Bedroom 

House  

          

3 Bedroom 

Flat or 

Maisonette 

          

3 Bedroom 

Parlour 

House 

          

4 Bedroom 

House 

         

5 Bedroom 

or More 

House  

        

 

(*) Single person with children who do not live with them on a permanent basis. 

Anyone with access to children will need to demonstrate their involvement and 

the care and supervision of the child. 

 

(**) Where a medical, mobility, or care need is assessed 

  

18.5 ADC may allocate properties outside these size criteria to larger households, or 

where a bedroom is too small for more than one occupant. 

 

18.6 Households that include a pregnant woman are normally assessed as if the baby 

has already been born (i.e. the baby is counted as a child), where the expected date 

of delivery is within 3 months.  

Page 38



 

 

25 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 

18.7 Where an Applicant and/or a member of the household requires an additional 

bedroom (for example, for medical reasons, or because of behavioural issues), then 

an additional bedroom may be permitted. Evidence may be required 

 

18.8 An additional bedroom may be permitted where applicant and/or member of the 

household has medical, care, support or behavioural need that requires an 

additional bedroom. ADC may require sufficient evidence of such need. 

 

18.9 RP Partners may have their own size criteria for their properties which may vary 

from the criteria stated above. Where this occurs, it will be made clear in their 

advertisements. 

 

18.10 Details of recent allocations, the number of bidders for each property and the band 

and priority date of the successful applicant are published on ADC’s website. 

 

19.0 Bidding and Selection  

 

19.1 Applicants will be permitted to bid for the size and type of property as shown in the 

table above at Paragraph 18.4.  In some circumstances the opportunity may be 

given to bid for larger properties where they are in low demand. 

 

19.2 All bids for property will be checked against the eligibility criteria. Ineligible bids are 

excluded from consideration. ADC will contact and advise Applicants who regularly 

bid for properties for which they are not eligible. 

 

19.3 Applicants may exercise choice regarding the properties for which they bid. 

However, if the Applicant is subject to bidding time limits, they will be expected to 

bid for both social and affordable rented homes. 

 

19.4 Applicants accepted as being owed a prevention, relief or main housing duty will be 

expected to bid on each suitable property that becomes available otherwise ADC 

may take action that includes making a direct offer of accommodation or reducing 

prioritisation by lowering the applicant’s band.  

 

19.5 ADC is aware that some applicants may need assistance to engage in the bidding 

process. ADC seeks to address this issue in the following ways: 

 

 Providing training and awareness events for agencies who support vulnerable 

people to help them guide their clients through the process of registration and 

bidding, as requested 

 

Page 39



 

 

26 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

 Offering direct advice and assistance to applicants, support staff and agencies 

during office hours either in person or by phone and by providing information on 

ADC’s website, as requested 

 

 By providing information in a variety of formats and languages, upon on request 

 

 Submitting bids on behalf of applicants, and accepting proxy bidding by support 

staff, friends or family of a vulnerable person, upon request. 

 

19.6 Qualifying bids for each property are placed in priority order. Priority is determined 

with reference to (1) the specific qualification criteria set out in this policy (where 

one applies), (2) by band, and finally (3) by date order, according to the date that 

the Applicant was placed within a band 

 

19.7 An offer of a tenancy of the property will normally be made to the Applicant at the 

top of the shortlist, subject to verification checks and acceptance of a nomination as 

set out above.  

 

19.8 ADC will arrange accompanied viewings with the Applicant and advise on any non-

essential repairs to be completed after the tenancy start date and give a target date 

for the completion of these repairs. 

 

19.9 ADC’s Tenancy and Lettings Policy requires that before offering a tenancy within 

ADC’s housing stock will undertake: 

 

 Vulnerability Risk Assessment – ADC will risk assess the Applicant to identify 

any support needs. Where we identify a need, we will need to be satisfied that 

adequate support is in place. 

 

 Affordability assessment – The Applicant will be asked to complete an 

affordability assessment including proof of income and expenditure and full 

details of any debts. ADC will also seek permission to carry out credit checks. 

Where the Applicant has housing-related debts, they will need to demonstrate 

that they have arrangements in place to repay them. If it is evident that the 

Applicant cannot afford the tenancy, an offer of a tenancy may be withdrawn 

 

 References – ADC will seek references for the Applicant to ensure they are 

able to maintain a tenancy, including maintaining the condition of property, 

acceptable behaviour and rent payments. If there is evidence of previous 

significant tenancy breaches, ADC will withdraw an offer. 

 

Page 40



 

 

27 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

19.10 An Applicant who successfully bids for a property will be subject to a further review 

or verification by ADC or the RP making an offer in accordance with their 

Tenancy/Lettings Policy. 

 

19.11 ADC will offer the successful applicant an offer of a tenancy in respect of the 

property and arrange for them to sign the tenancy agreement.  

 

19.12 The Applicant has the choice to refuse an offer of accommodation if it has been 

made via the choice-based lettings system. The Applicant may bid for other 

properties in subsequent choice-based lettings adverts.  

 

19.13 Refusals of properties offered by a direct allocation may lead to a discharge of 

homelessness duty, or to a review of the priority banding. This may result in down-

banding or removal from the Housing Register.  

 

19.14 If the Applicant refuses the offer the ADC will re-shortlist the existing bidders to allow 

an offer to be made to the next highest priority Applicant  

 

19.15 Non-homeless Applicants will not normally be penalised for refusing offers however 

persistent and unreasonable refusals will result in enquiries being made and a 

review of the application. This may result in the Applicant being excluded from the 

Housing Register.   

 

19.16 Where there are no eligible bids for a property, ADC may decide to make a direct 

allocation or to re-advertise the property. 

 

19.17 Direct Allocations 

 

19.16.1 Some properties will not be advertised or made available for bidding. ADC will 

directly allocate these properties where direct allocations are stipulated in the 

Priority Band or with the authorisation of the Housing Options Manager. 

 

19.16.2 Direct allocations will be a suitable offer, which as far as possible matches the size 

and type of property for which the applicant qualifies; and not in an area known to 

be unsafe for the household.  

 

19.16.3 The offer of properties by direct allocations will take place as set out on the Priority 

Bands in sections 17 and Appendix A of this Allocations Policy 

 

19.18 If the Applicant disagrees with the Council’s direct letting decision they may request 

a review. If the Applicant is dissatisfied with the review decision they have a final right 

of appeal to the Housing Appeals Panel. 

  

Page 41



 

 

28 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

20.0 Review and Appeal  

 

20.1 Applicants may request a review of a decision made by ADC in respect of their 

housing application. Requests for a review must be made in writing. Applicants will 

be asked to explain why they consider ADC decision to be unreasonable, and to 

provide any additional evidence to support their request 

 

20.2 A request for a review must be made within 21 days from the day on which the 

Applicant received notification of the decision. ADC has the discretion to extend the 

time limit if it considered that this would be reasonable. 

 

20.3 At the first stage of the review a Housing Options Team Leader will reassess actions 

and decision of the Allocations Team. The Team Leader will respond to the 

Applicant within 2 weeks of the review request. Applicants will be advised if the 

decision is going to be delayed for any reason. A first appeal will be to a Housing 

Options Team Leader.  A final appeal will be to the Housing Options Manager.   

 

20.4 If the Applicant disagrees with the Team Leader’s reassessment, they can request 

a final review by the Housing Options Manager who will carry out the second stage 

review and respond to the applicant within 8 weeks of the review request being 

received. Applicants will be advised if the decision is  going to be delayed for any 

reason 

 

20.5 If the Applicant disagrees with the second stage review decision, they have a final 

right of appeal to the Housing Appeals Panel which comprises of three Arun District 

Councillors. The panel will be supported by a senior member of staff who has not 

been involved in the original decision. 

 

20.6 A request for an appeal must be made within 21 days from the day on which the 

Applicant received notification of the ADC’s second stage review decision. The 

Council has the discretion to extend the time limit if it considered that this would be 

reasonable. 

 

20.7 Any request for an appeal must be on the basis that the Allocation Policy  has not 

been applied correctly to the household’s circumstances. If the applicant wishes to 

challenge the Allocations Policy itself, they are advised to seek independent legal 

advice. 

 

20.8 Requests for an appeal must be made in writing. Applicants will be asked to explain 

why they consider ADC has misapplied the published policy. Applicants may present 

their case to the Panel in person and may be accompanied by a relative or friend 

but may not be formally represented by a third party. 

 

Page 42



 

 

29 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

20.9 ADC will aim to carry out an appeal hearing and respond to the applicant within 8 

weeks of the appeal request being received. Applicants will be advised if for any 

reason the decision is going to be delay. 

 

20.10 If the applicant remains dissatisfied with the decision, they will be advised that they 

have the right to refer their case to the Local Government and Social Care 

Ombudsman details of which can be found at Home - Local Government and Social 

Care Ombudsman 

 

21.0  Data Protection  

 

21.1 ADC regards the lawful and appropriate treatment of personal information important 

to its successful operations and maintaining confidence with its users. More 

information about the handling of personal information can be found at Data 

protection | Arun District Council.   

 

21.2 Personal information is handled in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 

and will be subject to appropriate confidentiality.   

21.4 By submitting an application form to join the Housing Register, Applicants consent 

to the processing of sensitive personal data about them. Where an applicant’s 

household includes non-dependent adults, their consent will also be obtained.   

 

21.5 ADC may disclose information contained in an application and about associated 

bidding activity and rehousing prospects to agents and/or service providers and 

may also share this information with other relevant ADC services as the law permits. 

 

21.6 All information submitted in respect of an application will be verified. Verification 

may include credit checks, Electoral Register and Council Tax records checks, 

and other agencies.  

 

21.7 Applicants have the right to see the information held about them and receive a copy 

of all information held on computer or on paper file, upon request. 

 

22.0 Performance and Monitoring  

 

22.1 The Allocation Policy will be subject to review in four years from its implementation 

and on publication of any significant change in legislation, codes of guidance or 

the Regulatory Standards.   

 

22.2 ADC has service standards for the Allocations Policy. These are included in the 

housing service standards agreed for and with ADC’s tenants. ADC will review and 

publicise its performance against these standards annually. 

 

Page 43

https://www.lgo.org.uk/
https://www.lgo.org.uk/
https://www.arun.gov.uk/data-protection/
https://www.arun.gov.uk/data-protection/


 

 

30 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

22.3 ADC will publish waiting list numbers and lettings outcomes on its  website at (to 

be confirmed when our new system is in place) 

 

22.4 The Group Head of Residential Circumstances can make minor amendments to 

the Allocations Policy to address changes in legislation, statutory guidance, and 

local need. 

 

  

Page 44



 

 

31 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

Band A – Emergency and High Priority  
 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

A1 Medical A The current housing conditions are 

having a serious or debilitating impact 

on an Applicant or a member of the 

household who has an emergency or 

life-threatening medical condition and 

it is essential to urgently rectify the 

situation.  A relevant medical 

professional must confirm (1) the 

emergency or life-threatening 

condition (2) the serious or 

debilitating impact of the current 

accommodation and (3) explanation 

of how this can only be improved in 

alternative suitable accommodation 

and the type of accommodation 

required  

 

ADC may override the 

choice-based lettings 

process in order to 

make a reasonable 

direct allocation of 

suitable alternative 

accommodation.  

 

If this allocation is 

refused, the priority of 

the case will be 

reviewed and may be 

down banded or 

removed from the 

housing register.  

 

In addition, if no 

successful bid has 

been made within 6 

months the banding will 

be reviewed. 

 

A2 Under-

occupying 1+ 

bedroom 

Applicants living in ADC or RP 

accommodation within the Arun 

District who are under-occupying one 

or more bedrooms. 

 

No required timescale 

for bidding. 

A3 Disabled 

adaptations 

Applicants releasing an adapted 

property or to make best use of 

adapted stock where the applicant 

does not require adaptations. 

 

No required timescale 

for bidding. 

A4 Successors Statutory and discretionary 

successors living in ADC properties, 

where the Neighbourhood Housing 

Manager has agreed to rehouse an 

applicant to more suitable 

Applicants required to 

bid within 12 weeks of 

being placed in Band A. 

However, ADC may 

override the choice 

Page 45



 

 

32 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

accommodation than that currently 

occupied by the Applicant 

based lettings process 

to make a reasonable 

direct allocation of 

suitable alternative 

accommodation.  

 

A5 Overcrowding 

Notice or 

Prohibition 

Order  

An Overcrowding Notice or 

Prohibition Order has been served by 

ADC’s Private Sector Housing 

Section as a result of statutory 

overcrowding or disrepair; and where 

there is an imminent risk to the 

household; or it would be impossible 

to remain in the property whilst 

remedial works are carried out. 

ADC will override the 

choice based lettings 

process in order to 

make a reasonable 

direct allocation of 

suitable alternative 

accommodation. This 

may include an offer of 

suitable 

accommodation in the 

private rented sector, 

which will discharge the 

main unintentional duty. 

 

A6 Emergency 

priority 

Severe housing need for exceptional 

circumstances in crisis situations 

which warrant emergency priority as 

agreed by the Housing Options 

Manager. This excludes homeless 

applicants to whom ADC has a duty 

under Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996 

(as amended by the Homelessness 

Act 2002) 

 

ADC may override the 

choice based lettings 

process to make a 

reasonable direct 

allocation of suitable 

alternative 

accommodation.  

A7 Additional 

priority for ex 

Armed Forces 

personnel, 

where the 

assessed need 

falls within 

Band B  

The following categories will be 

awarded one Band higher priority 

than their assessed need: 

 Former members of the Regular 

Forces 

 Serving members of the Regular 

Forces who need to move 

because of a serious injury, 

medical condition or disability 

sustained as a result of their 

service 

No required timescale 

for bidding. 

Page 46



 

 

33 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

 Bereaved spouses and civil 

partners of members of the 

Regular Forces leaving Services 

Family Accommodation following 

the death of their spouse or 

partner 

 Serving or former members of the 

Reserve Forces who need to 

move because of a serious injury, 

medical condition or disability 

sustained as a result of their 

service 

A8 Homeless 

(owed the main 

duty) 

Homeless Applicants owed a full 

homelessness duty by ADC under 

Section 193 of the Housing Act 1996 

(as amended), except those who are 

owed this duty because of the 

inclusion of a ‘restricted person’ in 

their household. 

Priority A8 includes homeless 

applicants owed the main duty by 

ADC, who qualify for a ‘reasonable 

preference’ as per the Housing Act 

1996, Part 6 and the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017, and to whom the 

local connection criteria of the 

Allocations Policy do not apply. 

 

 

For homeless 

applicants placed in 

emergency or 

temporary 

accommodation, ADC 

will make a reasonable 

direct allocation of 

suitable alternative 

accommodation. This 

may include an offer of 

suitable 

accommodation in the 

private rented sector, 

which will discharge 

ADC’s main 

unintentional duty. 

An Applicant owed a 

duty under Section 

193(2) of the Housing 

Act 1996 (as 

amended), and who 

subsequently refuses a 

suitable final offer of 

accommodation made 

under Section 193(7) or 

a private sector offer 

made under Section 

193(7AA) of this Act, 

Page 47



 

 

34 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

will no longer be owed 

a homelessness duty, 

and will be from the 

housing register for 6 

months. The decision to 

end a homelessness 

duty will be made by a 

Housing Options 

Officer. 

 

A9 Homeless 

(making own 

arrangements) 

Homeless Applicants owed the main 

duty by ADC and making their own 

temporary arrangements. Main 

unintentional duty is defined as in 

Section 193 Part 7 of the Housing Act 

1996 (as amended by the 

Homelessness Act 2002 and the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017). 

Arrangements will be subject to home 

visit and safeguarding checks by 

ADC’s staff 

Priority A11 includes homeless 

applicants owed the main duty by 

ADC, who qualify for a ‘reasonable 

preference’ as per the Housing Act 

1996, Part 6 and the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017, and to whom the 

local connection criteria of the 

allocations Policy do not apply. 

 

Homeless applicants 

making their own 

housing arrangements 

while bidding for 

permanent 

accommodation, Band 

A will apply for a 

maximum period of 6 

months.  Applicants will 

only be permitted to 

remain in Band A if no 

suitable properties have 

been advertised 

ADC may make a 

reasonable direct 

allocation of suitable 

alternative 

accommodation.  

This may include an 

offer of suitable 

accommodation in the 

private rented sector, 

which will discharge 

ADC’s main 

unintentional duty. 

A10 Homeless 

(Relief stage) 

and owed the 

s188 interim 

Applicants who have been placed in 

emergency accommodation and are 

owed the s.188 interim 

accommodation duty and the relief 

Band A will apply until a 

main duty decision is 

made on the 

application. 

Page 48



 

 

35 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

accommodation 

duty 

duty. The household must be actively 

engaging with the Local Authority to 

relieve their homelessness and be 

working to achieve the agreed actions 

within their personal housing plan. 

ADC may make a 

reasonable direct 

allocation of suitable 

alternative 

accommodation.  

This may include an 

offer of suitable 

accommodation in the 

private rented sector, 

which will discharge 

ADC’s main duty. 

 

Band B 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

B1 Medical B The current housing conditions are 
having a significant adverse effect 
on the medical condition, learning 
difficulties or care needs of the 
Applicant or a member of the 
household. Evidence is required 
from a relevant medical professional 
confirming (1) the condition (2) that 
the condition will significantly 
worsen over a period of time in the 
current accommodation and (3) that 
this will be rectified or significantly 
improved by alternative suitable 
accommodation. 

Where an applicant fails 

to bid successfully within 

6 months, the priority of 

the case will be 

reviewed, which may 

result in down-banding 

or the removal of the 

application.  

This will not apply where 

no suitable properties 

have been advertised 

for bidding. 

ADC may override the 

choice based lettings 

process to make a 

reasonable direct 

allocation of suitable 

alternative 

accommodation.  

B2 Homeless 

(Relief stage) 

and not owed 

Applicants who are defined as 

homeless under Part 7 of the 

Housing Act 1996 (as amended by 

Band B will apply until a 

main duty decision is 

made on the application, 

Page 49



 

 

36 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

the s188 

interim 

accommodation 

duty 

the Homelessness Act 2002 and the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017), 

prior to the main homelessness duty 

being determined. 

 

 

the application will then 

be reviewed and re-

banded accordingly 

ADC may make a 

reasonable direct 

allocation of suitable 

alternative 

accommodation.  

This may include an 

offer of suitable 

accommodation in the 

private rented sector, 

which will discharge 

ADC’s main 

unintentional duty. 

B3 Returning 

homeless after 

being 

accommodated 

in the private 

rented sector 

Previously homeless applicants 

accommodated in the private rented 

sector (which discharged ADC’s 

main unintentional duty) who have 

become unintentionally homeless 

again within 2 years. Main duty is 

defined as in Section 193 Part 7 of 

the Housing Act 1996 (as amended 

by the Homelessness Act 2002 and 

the Homelessness Reduction Act 

2017). 

In these cases, the local connection 

criteria of the allocations Policy does 

not apply. 

For homeless applicants 

making their own 

housing arrangements 

while bidding for 

permanent 

accommodation: no 

required timescale for 

bidding.  

For homeless applicants 

placed in emergency or 

temporary 

accommodation: ADC 

may make a reasonable 

direct allocation of 

suitable alternative 

accommodation.  

This may include an 

offer of suitable 

accommodation in the 

private rented sector, 

which will discharge 

Page 50



 

 

37 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

ADC’s main 

unintentional duty. 

B4 Lacking rooms Applicants with dependent children 

lacking 1 bedroom and lacking 

kitchen or bathroom; or sharing 

kitchen or bathroom with non-family 

members (as defined by S.113 

Housing Act 1985); or lacking 2 

bedrooms.  

This excludes households in interim 

or temporary accommodation 

provided by ADC  

No required timescale 

for bidding 

B5 Fostering or 

adoption 

To enable fostering or adoption 

where an assessed need and an 

agreement has been reached 

between Social Services and the 

Housing Options Manager to 

provide permanent accommodation 

prior to any placement taking place 

No required timescale 

for bidding 

B6 Threatened 

with 

homelessness 

or homeless 

(Prevention) 

Applicants who are defined as 

threatened with homelessness 

under Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996 

(as amended by the Homelessness 

Act 2002 and the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017), prior to either 

the relief duty or the main 

homelessness duty being 

determined. 

 

 

Where an applicant fails 

to bid successfully within 

6 months, the priority of 

the case will be 

reviewed, which may 

result in down-banding 

or the removal of the 

application.  

This will not apply where 

no suitable properties 

have been advertised 

for bidding. 

ADC may make a 

reasonable direct 

allocation of suitable 

alternative 

accommodation which 

may include an offer of 

Page 51



 

 

38 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

suitable accommodation 

in the private rented 

sector 

 

B7 From care or 

supported 

housing 

Applicants moving on from care or 

supported housing, as authorised by 

the Housing Options Manager 

Where an applicant fails 

to bid successfully within 

6 months, the priority of 

the case will be 

reviewed, which may 

result in down-banding 

or the removal of the 

application.  

This will not apply where 

no suitable properties 

have been advertised 

for bidding. 

B8 Additional 

priority for ex 

Armed Forces 

personnel, 

where the 

assessed need 

falls within 

Band C  

The following categories will be 

awarded one Band higher priority 

than their assessed need: 

 Former members of the Regular 

Forces.  

 Serving members of the Regular 

Forces who need to move 

because of a serious injury, 

medical condition or disability 

sustained because of their 

service.  

 Bereaved spouses and civil 

partners of members of the 

Regular Forces leaving Services 

Family Accommodation following 

the death of their spouse or 

partner.  

 Serving or former members of 

the Reserve Forces who need to 

move because of a serious 

injury, medical condition or 

disability sustained because of 

No required timescale 

for bidding. 

Page 52



 

 

39 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

their service 

 

B9 Additional 

preference for 

people fleeing 

domestic abuse  

Applicants, including those who do 

not have a local connection, who are 

being accommodated in a refuge or 

temporary accommodation  

 

 

No required timescale 

for bidding  

 

ADC may override the 

choice based lettings 

bidding process to make 

a reasonable direct 

allocation of suitable 

alternative 

accommodation  

B10 Additional 

preference for 

young people 

leaving local 

authority care   

West Sussex County Council 

(WSCC) has a corporate parenting 

responsibility where a young person 

who has been looked after, fostered, 

or accommodated and has had a 

duty of care accepted under the 

Children Act in West Sussex, and is 

ready for independent living.  

 

To enable a planned move on to 

independent suitable 

accommodation providing a support 

plan is in place the following criteria 

will apply:  

 they are ready and prepared to 

move to independent settled 

accommodation  

 they have the life skills to 

manage a tenancy  

 they have a support package and 

appropriate Pathway Plan  

 they have not, or have not 

previously, been a tenant of a RP 

as a result of being granted this 

priority In exceptional 

circumstances priority may be 

given to former relevant children 

(up to the age of 25) who have 

Where an applicant fails 

to bid successfully within 

6 months, the priority of 

the case will be 

reviewed, which may 

result in down-banding 

or the removal of the 

application.  

This will not apply where 

no suitable properties 

have been advertised 

for bidding. 

 

Page 53



 

 

40 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

completed higher education 

funded by WSCC 

 

Band C 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

C1 Medical C The current housing conditions have a 

negative impact on the medical 

condition or learning difficulties of the 

applicant or a member of the 

household; and either the condition, or 

the person's ability to cope with it, is 

likely to be improved by alternative 

suitable accommodation. Evidence is 

required from a medical professional 

confirming (1) the medical or mental 

health condition, learning difficulty, or 

unmet care need (2) the effect of the 

current accommodation and (3) how 

suitable alternative accommodation 

will prevent worsening or promote an 

improvement      

Priority C1 includes applicants who 

qualify for a ‘reasonable preference’ 

on medical or welfare grounds, as per 

the Housing Act 1996, Part 6, and the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, 

and to whom the local connection 

criteria of the Allocation Policy do not 

apply. 

No timescales for bidding  

C2 Lacking 1 

bedroom 

Households lacking one bedroom. No required timescale for 

bidding 

 

C3 Sharing 

kitchen/ 

bathroom 

with family 

members 

Applicants with dependent children 

living with, and sharing a kitchen or 

bathroom with, family members (as 

defined by S.113 Housing Act 1985) 

who are not part of the immediate 

household and not part of the housing 

No required timescale for 

bidding. 

Page 54



 

 

41 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

application .This excludes households 

in  interim or temporary 

accommodation provided by ADC 

 

C4 Give or 

receive 

support; or 

to take up 

employment 

Applicants who need to move to a 

particular area within Arun to give 

support, which cannot be met by 

others; or to receive support or 

specialised medical treatment, which 

is not available in the current location; 

and where failure to meet that need 

would cause hardship; and where the 

distance from the applicant's current 

location is significantly impacting on 

the ability to deliver or receive that 

support. The housing need within 

Arun is to be confirmed by a 

healthcare professional or other 

statutory agency. 

 

Existing social housing tenants who 

need to move into Arun, or to a 

particular area within Arun, for 

permanent employment and who 

cannot fulfil their contract of 

employment in their current 

accommodation after making 

reasonable adjustments.  

 

Before applying to the Arun housing 

register, applicants must make 

reasonable adjustments to remain in 

their current accommodation when 

taking up new employment. These 

may include arranging transport to 

work or organising the care of 

dependents. Band C6 will only apply 

when the employment cannot be 

fulfilled, even after making such 

adjustments. 

 

Applicants will need to provide proof of 

their current social tenancy; their 

No required timescale for 

bidding. 

 

  

 

 

Page 55



 

 

42 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

employment start date and work 

location and to demonstrate why 

reasonable adjustments are not 

possible. 

 

Priority C6 includes applicants who: i) 

qualify for a ‘reasonable preference’, 

as per the Housing Act 1996, Part 6, 

and the Homelessness Reduction Act 

2017;  

or 

ii) need to move for employment 

reasons, as per the Qualification 

Criteria for Right to Move Regulations 

2015; and  

iii) to whom the local connection 

criteria of the Allocations Policy do not 

apply. 

 

People who are homeless including 

those who have not made an 

application (within the meaning of Part 

7 of the 1996 Housing Act as 

amended by the Homelessness Act 

2002 and the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017). This includes 

people who are intentionally homeless 

and those who are not in priority need.  

 

People who are owed a (homeless) 

duty by ANY local authority under 

section 190(2), 193(2) or 195(2) of the 

1996 Act (or under section 65(2) or 

68(2) of the Housing Act 1985). The 

letter detailing the outcome of a 

homeless application will specify 

whether one of these sections applies.  

 

C5 Housing for 

Older 

People  

Applicants for housing for older people 

over 60 where there is no higher 

housing need 

 

No required timescale for 

bidding 

Page 56



 

 

43 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

C6 Insanitary or 

overcrowded 

housing 

Applicants living in insanitary or 

overcrowded housing.  

 

For C6 priority, ‘insanitary housing’ will 

contain Category 1 hazards as 

assessed under the Housing Health & 

Safety Rating System (HHSRS), as 

confirmed by ADC’s Private Sector 

Housing team or the Neighbourhood 

Housing team; and where there is no 

planned remedial or improvement 

works or enforcement action. 

 

‘Overcrowded housing’ is defined by 

the statutory standard set out in the 

Housing Act 1985, sections 324 to 

326, as confirmed by ADC’s Private 

Sector Housing team or the 

Neighbourhood Housing team; and 

where there is no planned remedy or 

enforcement action to resolve the 

overcrowding.  

 

Priority C6 includes applicants who 

qualify for a ‘reasonable preference’ 

on the grounds of insanitary or 

overcrowded housing, as per the 

Housing Act 1996, Part 6 and the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, 

and to whom the local connection 

criteria of the allocation Policy do not 

apply. 

 

No required timescale for 

bidding. 

 

 

 

 

 

Band D 

Band 

code 

Criteria  

 

Definition 

 

Bidding requirement 

 

D1 Older 

People’s 

Housing 

with no 

Local 

Households qualifying for housing for 

older people who are deemed to have 

no local connection may be considered 

for hard to let sheltered 

accommodation.  

Households in this band 

will be able to bid for 

properties but their bids will 

only be considered after all 

bids from households who 

Page 57



 

 

44 

Housing Allocations Policy 

 

 

Connection 

and no 

housing 

need 

do meet the local 

connection requirements 

have been dealt with. Any 

bids placed for properties 

other than housing for older 

persons will be considered 

as ineligible bids and not 

considered for nomination 

 

D2 Community 

Land Trust 

Allocations  

Community Land Trust properties are 

subject to a separate allocations Policy 

which provides affordable housing for 

residents of a specific parish.  

 

Band D2 will awarded to applicants 

who would not ordinarily be eligible to 

join the housing register but would 

meet the qualification criteria of the 

CLT allocation policy 

 

Applicants accepted onto 

the housing register for the 

specific reason of applying 

for CLT properties will be 

restricted to bid on said 

properties only. They will 

be excluded from bidding 

on any other general needs 

properties. 

D3  Reduced 

priority – 

no bids in 

six months  

The decision to reduce priority for 

applicants who are not bidding in any 

band will be made on the basis that 

they will be demoted to Band D for a 

period of 6 months unless there is a 

significant change in circumstances. 

Exceptions may be considered 

depending on the availability of 

suitable accommodation and personal 

circumstances of the applicant. At the 

end of the 6-month period applicants 

can request their application is 

reassessed.  An application will only be 

re-instated if in accordance with the 

assessment process above.  

Applicants can appeal a decision to 

reassess.    

 

Applicants in Bands A and 

B have 6 months from the 

date of assessment to 

place a bid. If they do not 

place a bid on properties 

which will meet their needs 

during that time, they will 

be reassessed to Band D 

for six months unless they 

continue to qualify in Band 

C.   

 

This will not apply to 

applicants owed a 

homelessness duty or 

where no suitable 

properties have been 

advertised for bidding. 

 

 

 
 

Page 58



 

 

         
 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF THE HOUSING AND WELLBEING 
COMMITTEE ON 2 DECEMBER 2021  

 
 

SUBJECT:  ARUN LOCAL COMMUNITY NETWORK UPDATE 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:  Robin Wickham, Group Head of Community Wellbeing 
DATE:                        October 2021 
EXTN:                        01903 737835  
AREA:                       Services Directorate 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  Health provision is currently undergoing a transformation.  
Nationally General Practices have established clusters of Primary Care Networks (PCN’s).  
In West Sussex the Primary Care Networks are being encouraged to link into Local 
Community Networks (LCN’s) based on the geographies of District and Borough Councils 
as this will make partnership working and the achievement of common goals more 
practical and sustainable.  Each Local Community Network is established with a range of 
community partners to work in partnership to address local health inequalities and 
wellbeing related issues.  This report provides an update to members of the Arun Local 
Community Network. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Housing and Wellbeing Committee approve: 

1. The annual Wellbeing Grant Fund of £5,000 is allocated to the Arun Local 
Community Network board to be distributed in line with its priorities.   

2. The Arun Wellbeing and Health Partnership is replaced by the Arun Local 
Community Network partnership; and  

3. A member of the Housing and Wellbeing Committee is nominated to the Arun Local 
Community Network board. 

 

1.    BACKGROUND:  

1.1 Local Community Networks were launched across Coastal West Sussex in 2017.  
They were central to the ‘Coastal Care: Inspiring Healthier Communities Together’ 
Plan with the aspiration of establishing a ‘place based’ operating model that would 
transform health services from being illness centred to a system where partners, 
including communities, worked together to improve the health and wellbeing of the 
local population.   

1.2 The model brought together health providers, commissioners, District and County 
Councils and the community and voluntary sector as aligned partners to identify and 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



 

 

act on health-related issues affecting communities at a local level. 

1.3 By 2019 the National Health Service (NHS) landscape was in the process of 
fundamental change.   A new Integrated Care System was being established with the 
purpose of breaking down the divisions between hospitals and general practice, and 
the separation between physical and social care.  This included a strategic aim to 
keep people healthy in their community and out of hospital. 

1.4 Locally, Coastal Care was replaced with a ‘Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership’ and the Primary Care Network model was introduced.  A Primary Care 
Networks (PCN) is a group of GP Practices working together at scale and in 
partnership with the local Community Nursing Service to deliver an integrated and 
high-quality community health service operating under a Primary Care Network 
Network Agreement. 

1.5 The Sustainability and Transformation Partnership quickly became the Sussex-wide 
Integrated Care System which reviewed the Local Community Network model and 
confirmed that it provided an effective model to tackle health inequalities which is 
now being considered Sussex-wide.  The basic requirements of Local Community 
Networks are as follows: 

 

 operate on a scale that provide an intermediate place-based community network 
and are best suited to work on established District Council footprints 
 

 comprise of Health, Social Care, County Council, District Council and Voluntary 
and Community Sector organisations 
 

 include Primary Care Networks as key members 
  

 build genuine partnerships between members and create opportunities for more 
joined up working  
 

 focus on prevention and early intervention with the aim of improving the health 
and wellbeing of the resident population and use the West Sussex Joint Health 
& Wellbeing Strategy as their framework for delivery 

 
1.6 West Sussex was at the forefront establishing the Local Community Network  

partnership model. The experience of working together during the Covid-19 pandemic 
and recognition of the unequal impact of the virus on disadvantaged groups within the 
population provided a renewed the ambition to tackle health inequalities.  To this end 
West Sussex County Council (WSCC) and the NHS West Sussex Clinical 
Commissioning Group (WSCCG) joined together to provide a strategic lead to 
establish effective Local Community Networks in West Sussex and looked to the 
District and Borough Council’s to help co-ordinate this work. 

 
2.      ARUN LCN 

2.1 The Arun Wellbeing and Health Partnership provided the foundation for the Arun 
Local Community Network.  This Partnership had provided the opportunity for care 
providers, statutory organisations and the voluntary sector to meet and collaborate.  

Page 60



 

 

It distributed a small grant fund (£5,000) to support the delivery of projects that 
helped tackle local priorities and promoted local initiatives and opportunities offered 
by partner organisations. 

2.2 The introduction of a statutory Integrated Care System as outlined in the white paper 
‘Integration and innovation: working together to improve health and social care for all’ 
(published 11 February 2021) created the stimulus to realign the work of the Arun 
Wellbeing and Health Partnership to that of the Arun Local Community Network.     
The fundamental difference was the presence of the newly formed local Primary 
Care Networks with a mandate to engage with the Local Community Network and 
were expected to play a role in addressing local health inequalities. 

2.3 The collaboration between West Sussex County Council (WSCC) and NHS West 
Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group (WSCCG) provided the momentum to 
formally establish the Arun Local Community Network and initial discussions began 
in early 2021.  The formation of the Arun Local Community Network to tackle health 
inequalities provided an opportunity to incorporate a number of the related Covid-19 
workstreams (e.g. Food Partnership, Financial Impact) thus reducing duplication and 
building on the established relationships and goodwill that had formed as partners 
responded to the pandemic.   

2.4 The Members of the Arun Local Community Network board include: 

 Citizens Advice 

 Primary Care Lead - Arun Area 

 Primary Care Networks (x3 in Arun, see Appendix 2) 

 West Sussex Health Watch 

 WSCC – Partnerships and Communities  

 WSCC – Public Health 

 WSCC/West Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group Lead 

 Voluntary Action Arun & Chichester (VAAC) 

 Arun Officers – Community Wellbeing  

 Arun Councillor (vacant) 

2.5 The Terms of Reference of the Arun Local Community Network were agreed in July 
2021 (Appendix 1) with the stated aim ‘to address local health and wellbeing 
inequalities in the Arun District’.   These were assessed using a range of information 
including the Office of National Statistics population data, the Public Health England 
Arun Health Profile (2019) and West Sussex Joint Strategic Needs Assessment data 
(2021) together with intelligence from partner organisations, including an assessment 
of the economic impact of Covid.  Based on this information the Arun Local 
Community Network board agreed to focus its work on the areas of greatest 
deprivation.  It is in these areas that the socio-economic factors that determine health 
(education, employment, income, housing, environment, etc.) are most acute, and 
the health inequalities and outcomes most stark.   

2.6 Two priority areas have been identified as Courtwick with Toddington and Bersted.  
A subgroup has been established for Courtwick with Toddington which is chaired by 
a clinical lead (GP) within the Angmering Coppice Fitzalan (ACF) Primary Care 
Network (Appendix 2).  Meetings have also been held with the purpose of 
establishing a Bersted subgroup.  Both subgroups will agree the key priorities for 

Page 61



 

 

their respective areas and provide regular reports to the Arun Local Community 
Network board. 

2.7 The Arun Local Community Network is in its formative stages, but much has been 
achieved in setting and establishing the membership and agreeing its priorities.  A 
vacancy on the Board is available to an Arun Councillor and it is proposed that the 
Committee nominate a representative.  It is also proposed that the £5,000 grant fund 
currently distributed by the Arun Wellbeing and Health partnership is in future passed 
to the Arun Local Community Network for allocation based on its priorities, but it 
continues to be administered by Arun officers.  

 

3.      CONCLUSION 

3.1 The changing landscape in Health has provided an opportunity for greater 
collaboration between Health, Social Care, statutory and non-statutory organisations 
to improve the health and wellbeing outcomes for local communities.  The Arun Local 
Community Network has elected to focus on areas with the greatest inequality where 
the need is greatest.  To achieve this, it will concentrate its efforts on improving those 
socio-economic factors which will have the greatest impact on improving the health 
and wellbeing of those communities. 

 

2.  PROPOSAL(S): 

It is proposed that the Housing and Wellbeing Committee approve: 

1. The annual Wellbeing Grant Fund of £5,000 is allocated to the Arun Local 
Community Network board to be distributed in line with its priorities.   

2. The Arun Wellbeing and Health Partnership is replaced by the Arun Local 
Community Network partnership; and  

3. A member of the Housing and Wellbeing Committee is nominated to the Arun Local 
Community Network Board. 

3.  OPTIONS: 

This report provides an update in regard to the development of the Arun Local Community 
Network and proposes a number of changes to the local health and wellbeing 
arrangements.  Members may choose to agree or reject the proposals. 

4.  CONSULTATION: 

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council   

Relevant District Ward Councillors   

Other groups/persons (please specify)   

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
(Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

Financial   

Legal   

Page 62



 

 

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment   

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act 

  

Sustainability   

Asset Management/Property/Land   

Technology   

Other (please explain)   

6.  IMPLICATIONS: 

Financial:  the existing Arun Wellbeing Grant is transferred to the Arun Local Community 
Network to allocate and distribute based on the board’s identified priorities and that Arun 
Officers will retain oversight and management of the fund on behalf of the Council.   

 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

To demonstrate commitment and support to the development of the Arun Local 
Community Network to tackle and reduce health inequalities.   

 

8.  BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

Integration and innovation: working together to improve health and social care for 
all  

 

Page 63

Integration%20and%20innovation:%20working%20together%20to%20improve%20health%20and%20social%20care%20for%20all
Integration%20and%20innovation:%20working%20together%20to%20improve%20health%20and%20social%20care%20for%20all


 

 

Appendix 1 
 
 

Arun Local Community Network (LCN) 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
 
Aim 
The Local Community Network (LCN) is a multi-agency group and aims to 
address local health and wellbeing inequalities in the Arun District.  
 
The Arun Local Community Network have agreed to the following partnership 
principles:  

 We will work together to benefit and improve the local health and wellbeing 
our local communities  

 Every partner is an equal member 

 Partners will proactively build positive working relationships with each 
other to support shared working 

 Partners recognise and embrace the importance of assessing and 
addressing the wider social determinants that contribute to health 
inequalities to provide a holistic, integrated partnership response. 

 

The Arun Local Community Network will support and guide the local covid 
recovery response, and where required, provide governance for associated work 
(e.g. Arun & Chichester Food Partnership and Arun Financial Impact Working 
Group).    
 
The Arun Local Community Network recognises the importance and value of 
working with and alongside our local communities to deliver tangible health and 
wellbeing improvements; therefore, this principle will be applied throughout all 
work activities and programmes agreed by the partnership.   
 
Context 
In today’s climate where all resources are under pressure, efficient and 
collaborative partnerships across organisations are essential to a coordinated 
response to tackling the social and economic determinants of health.   
  
We recognise that there are a variety of partners who influence the health and 
wellbeing of residents, and that increased collaboration is likely to bring additional 
benefits. 
 
The Local Community Network is place-based aligned to the Arun District Council 
boundary, a collaborative network that seeks to realise these benefits by 
providing a forum that allows the time and space to build genuine partnerships 
and trust between members. 
 
 It is anticipated that these benefits will include: 

 Creating opportunities for more joined up and co-ordinated working at a 
local community level 

Page 64



 

 

 Preventing duplication 

 Ensuring best use of local assets, resources and shared intelligence 

 Enabling network knowledge to build and maintain an accurate shared 
picture of local system resources, gaps and challenges 

 Providing new, collaborative opportunities that support innovation and best 
practice 
 

 
LCNN members/organisations will undertake to: 

 Facilitate attendance of a senior member of staff at Arun Local Community 
Network Board Meetings (or in their absence a nominated deputy) 

 Share anonymised data that will help to identify priorities or drive projects 

 Share information about their organisation – new projects, strategies, 
structure changes and developments  

 Provide a leadership and/or advisory role in projects or work streams 
relevant to their role or organisation 

 Be a single point of contact for their organisation for other members of the 
Local Community Network 

 Promote and feedback on the work of the Local Community Network within 
their organisation and with other partners 

 Include/feedback the work of the Local Community Network to associated 
groups as agreed  

 Share relevant anonymised data to help the Local Community Network to 
identify local priorities and demonstrate impact  

 
 
Resourcing 
There is no additional budget identified for this Local Community Network 
Partnership, but administrative support will be provided by Arun District Council.  
 
The group members will be seeking further financial resources in order to 
continue and maintain the focus and work of the Local Community Network.   
 
Partner organisations will be committing people and time to the Local Community 
Network and any relevant task and finish groups including projects that are 
formed as appropriate. 
 
Meeting frequency 
Arun Local Community Network board meetings will be held at a minimum 
quarterly with an independent chair and a vice-chair.  These arrangements will be 
reviewed after 12 months or by agreement by the board members.   
 
For the 12 months period commencing 1 July 2021 the chair will be [Insert name 
of CitA Trustee] and the Vice Chair will be [pending confirming of Member of Arun 
District Council Housing & Wellbeing Committee].   
 
Reporting 
The Local Community Network will provide regular updates and reporting as is 
appropriate and requested by the Arun District Council Housing & Wellbeing 

Page 65



 

 

Committee and WSCC Health and Wellbeing Board.  The Local Community 
Network will seek to streamline reporting requirements where feasible and 
appropriate.     
 
Membership 
Independent Chair 
TBC (Vice-chair) 
Arun District Council Officers  
Arun District Council Member of Housing & Wellbeing Committee  
Citizens Advice  
CCG PCN Arun Area Lead 
Health Watch 
PCN Arun Leads  
WSCC Communities 
WSCC Public Health  
West Sussex Collaborative Working: WSCC & WSCCG 
Voluntary Action Arun & Chichester (VAAC)  
 
By agreement of the members, partners can be invited to join the Local 
Community Network board.   
 
Duration of the Terms of Reference 
The Terms of Reference will be reviewed at one year, or if circumstances change. 
 

Page 66



 

 

Appendix 2 
 
Primary Care Networks in Arun 
 
Angmering Coppice Fitzalan (ACF) Primary Care Network 
 

 Angmering and Coppice Medical Group 

 Fitzalan Medical Centre 
 
 
Arun Integrated Care Primary Care Network  
 

 The Park Surgery  

 Westcourt Surgery 

 Willow Green Surgery  
 

 
Regis Primary Care Networks 
  
Neighbourhood One – Central Regis 

 Maywood Surgery  

 West Meads Surgery  

 Grove House Surgery  

 Bognor Medical Practice  

 Bersted Green Surgery  
 
Neighbourhood Two – Rural Regis  

 The Croft Surgery  

 Arundel Surgery  

 Avisford Medical Group  

 Flansham Park Health Centre  
 
 
Note:  
Primary care networks are based on GP registered lists, typically serving 
communities of between 30,000 to 50,000. Small enough to provide the 
personal care valued by both patients and GPs, but large enough to 
have impact and economies of scale through better collaboration 
between practices and others in the local health and social care system 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



RESIDENTIAL & 
WELLBEING 
SERVICES 
COMMITTEE 

Report 
Author 

Date of 
Meeting 

Time Full Council 
Meeting Date 

     

Arun Wellbeing 
Report 
 
Flaxmean Report 
 
Information & 
Advice Contract 
Procurement 
 

 Thurs 22 
July  

6pm 15 Sept 

     

Safer Arun 
Partnership 
Report 
 
Compliance 
Policies 
 
Approval to 
Appointing Roof 
Contractor 
 
Empty Homes 
Premium 
 
Budget 
2022/2023 
process 
 
 

RW/GB 
 
 
 

Steve 
Madell 

 
Steve 
Madell 

 
 

Andy Dale 
 

Carolin 
Martlew 

 
 

Thurs 30 
Septembe

r 

6pm 10 Nov 

     

Local Community 
Network Update 
Report 
 
Housing Revenue 
Account Update 
Report 
 
Allocations Policy 
Review 
 
 
 

Robin 
Wickham 

 
 

Glen Smith 
 
 

Thurs 2 
December 

6pm 12 Jan 

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



     

Sussex Police 
Precept 
 
Leisure Operating 
Contract Report 
 
Littlehampton 
Community 
Wardens Update 
Report 
 

 Mon 24 
January 

6pm 9 March 

      

  Thurs 17 
March 

6pm 11 May 

 

Page 70



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2021/22 - Annual Update
	7 Housing Allocations Policy 2022
	Appendix 1 - Principal Changes to the Housing Allocations Policy
	Appendix 2 - Draft Housing Allocations Policy 2022

	8 Arun Local Community Network Update
	9 Work Programme
	11 Council Tax Insolvency Write Offs over £5,001
	12 Business Rates Insolvency Write Offs over £10,001
	13 Business Rates Insolvency Write Off
	14 Award of Business Rates Discretionary Rate Relief - 2020/2021 & 2021/2022

